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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON JUVENILE
RESTITUTION PROGRAMS

TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 1981

HousE or REPRESENTATIVES,
SuscoMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,
CoMMITTEE ON EpUcaTiON AND LARBOCR,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10:30 a.m., in room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Baltasar Corrada pre-
siding.

Me%nbers present: Representatives Corrada, Williams, and Petri.

Staff present: Gordon Raley, staff director; Deborah Hall, clerk;
Dorothy Strunk, minority senior legislative associate; and John
Dean, minority senior legislative associate.

Mr. Corrapa. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

Chairmian Andrew’s wife is scheduled for surgery this morning
and he has gone to be with her. He asked me to express his regrets
and preside in his absence.

Pursuant to its oversight responsibility for the Juvenile Justice
and Deliquency Prevention Act, the Subcommittee on Human Re-
sources convenes this morning to review progress made by a
number of restitution projects funded 2 years ago by the Office of
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention.

The idea of making restitution, whether for sins committed or
crimes perpetrated, is certainly a very old one. It predates many of
our modern-day judicial codes. At the same time, employment of
restitution models by the American juvenile justice system is rela-
tively new.

As I understand it, these projects are really aimed at making the
concept of justice mean something to the offender and the victim
alike. Young people, most often who have committed property of-
fenses, are given the opportunity to work and repay their victims
instead of being locked up. Thus, it keeps first offenders and minor
offenders out of secure correctional facilities while still allowing
them to literally pay for their crime.

Restitution certainly seems to be a good idea on paper. Today we
are here to see if it works in reality. About 2 years ago the Office
of Juvenile Justice funded 41 projects in 26 States, Puerto Rico,
and Washington, D.C., through a restitution. initiative. I under-
stand that an initial evaluation of this program by an independent
evaluator is near completion. We have that evaluator, as well as
juvenile justice officials with us this morning.

Following them, the project manager from one of the actual
projects in Madison, Wis., will describe the program as it was
implemented at the State and local level, and then a youth panel

(1)
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consisting of youngsters who have participated in the program,
both in Washington, D.C., and in Wisconsin, will describe its
impact on a personal level.

Mr. Dodge and Dr. Schneider will join us at this time. Mr. Dodge
is with the Office of Juvenile Justice here in Washington, ID.C., and
Dr. Schneider is the evaluator from Eugene, Oreg.

We welcome Douglas C. Dodge, branch chief, juvenile justice
system program, special emphasis division, Office of Juvenile Jus-
tice and Delinquency Prevention, Washington, D.C.

We also welcome Dr. Peter R. Schneider, principal investigator of
the Juvenile Restitution Initiative, Institute of Policy Analysis,
Eugene, Oreg.

Dr. Schneider, will you take a seat.

We welcome both of you to these hearings and appreciate very
much the testimony to be presented by you today with reference to
these innovative demonstration projects and your views on the
subject.

We are joined today here in the subcommittee by two of its
members, Mr. Williams and Mr. Petri.

If you have any initial statement that you would care to make, 1
would recognize either or both of you. If not, we will proceed with
the testimony of Mr. Dodge.

[Prepared testimony of Douglas C. Dodge follows:]

PrepARED TeEsTiMONY OF Doucras C. Dopbce, BRaANCH CHIEF, JUVENILE JUSTICE
SvsteM ProGraM, SpeciAL EmpHasis DivisioN, OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION

I appreciate the opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to appear today before the House
Education and Labor Subcommittee on Human Resources to discuss efforts by the
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention to promote restitution by
juvenile offenders as an alternative to incarceration. It is a particular pleasure to
represent the Office before this Subcommittee for the first time since enactment of
the Juvenile Justice Amendments of 1980.

As you know, the major share of the annual OJJDP appropriation is allocated to
the states according to a population formula for use in assisting each state imple-
ment such juvenile programs as the state deems appropriate. Smaller portions of
our funds are used for research and evaluation, technical assistance, coordination of
Federal activities, and discretionary grants which give special emphasis to innova-
tive prevention and treatment approaches.

In February of 1978, the Office announced a major competitive funding initiative
to support projects which utilized restitution by juvenile offenders. Attention to this
area was deemed appropriate in light of the emphasis in section 224(a)@3) of the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act on programs which are “effective
means of diverting juveniles from the traditional juvenile justice and correctional
system, including restitution projects . . .’ The major objectives of this initiative
were to hold youth accountable for their offenses, while providing an alternative
disposition to incarceration. Accountability for misdeeds would be directly targeted
to benefit the victim and the community.

Programs would be further cost effective because of the avoidance of the costs
associated with incarceration of young offenders. Maintenance of an individual in a
residential facility costs the government from $24,000 to $43,000 per year, depending
on the locality and the level of security. The cost per participant in a restitution
project, on the other hand, is only $1,000, a significant savings. Restitution partici-
pants enjoy the additional benefit of a meaningful employment experience which
helps in their rehabilitation.

Restitution for this program is conceived of in its broadest sense. It is defined to
include payments by an offender in cash to the victim or service either to the victim
or the general community. These payments must be made under jurisdiction of the
juvenile or criminal justice process. OJJDP added a new dimension to monetary
restitution by providing funds which could be used to support youth in employment.
Provision of this employment support, together with the use of community service,
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are viewed as giving all offenders an equal opportunity to participate, regardless of
their ability to pay. .

Between September 30, 1978, and March 9, 1979, OJJDP funded 41 juvenile
restitution projects in 26 states, Puerto Rico and the District of Columbia. Within
this group, there were six state-wide agencies or organizations responsible for over-
sight of program implementation at 50 local sites. 35 other localities were funded
directly. Thus, 85 projects were supported under the initiative.

Grants for the program were made for 24 months. The total amount awarded for
the two-year period was $19,564,000. Of the initial 41 awards, it is anticipated that
36 will be continued for a third year.

To assist with project implementation, OJJDP awarded a technical assistance
contract to the National Office of Social Responsibility (NOSR), of Arlington, Virgin-
ia, NOSR has developed several training manuals and conducted a number of small
training conferences for project personnel.

Six of the sites are being intensively evaluated by the Institute for Policy Analysis
(IPA) of Eugene, Oregon. IPA is also implementing a management information
system which provides a base of data on all projects.

Monetary restitution is the most frequently used form of restitution used by the
projects, followed by community service and direct service to victims. Two programs,
Puerto Rico and Charleston, South Carolina, do not accept any cases involving
monetary restitution. Wayne County, Michigan, accepts a monetary restitution
referral only if the youth already has a job. Otherwise, they rely on community
service placements.

The projects vary significantly in the scope of their activities. The narrowest in
scope receive an offender only after a restitution plan and order has been developed.
The youth will be placed and restitution payments will be supervised. A few ancil-
lary services are also provided for the victims or offenders. About one-half of the
programs fall into this category. This type of project is more predominant among
the state-wide sites where individual projects tend to be smaller and fewer persons
are available for delivery of services. The directly-funded local projects are more
likely to provide ancillary services to victims.

The projects offer a range of employment opportunities, including job develop-
ment (locating and reserving slots for project youth) and job assistance (placing
individual youths in a job). Subsidized work has the added ingredient of providing
funds to support the youth in a job.

Subsidized employment opportunities are offered by 69 percent of the local proj-
ects and 62 percent of the state-wide projects. Job assistance is more popular than
job development, although the difference is marginal. Only ten percent of the
projects offer all three services. Half of the local projects attempt to place the youth
in a permanent job, but only one state-wide project with three sites offers this
service to participants.

The results which have been reported regarding the operation of the various
restitution projects are encouraging. Many of the objectives set for the program are
being met. As of November 30, 1980, the following data have been reported:

The number of youth referred to the projects is 16,000;

The offenses which resulted in these referrals involved nearly 17,000 victims and
$8.7 million in losses;

Judges have ordered $2.4 million in monetary payments, 318,000 hours of commu-
nity service, and 5,100 hours of direct service to victims;

In 11,612 closed cases, juveniles placed by restitution projects have paid $1,076,200
in monetary restitution, worked 177,935 hours of community service, and performed
more than 4,157 hours of direct victim service;

78.7T percent of the youth referred are successfully completing their original or
adjusted restitution orders; this successful completion rate goes to 87 percent if
project ineligibles are removed from consideration;

85.6 percent of the referrals have no subsequent contact with the juvenile court
alfter the offense that resulted in a referral to the project and prior to their case
closure.

We are very pleased with these results, and believe it is particulary noteworthy
that many young people are finding permanent employment as a result of their
placement in jobs by restitution projects,

Besides the projects in this initiative Mr. Chairman, OJJDP funds have been used
in a number of other instances to support restitution. Some states have deemed it
appropriate to use formula grant funds to implement restitution programs. I have
brought with me a listing of OJJDP awards relating to restitution, Several back-
ground papers and evaluation documents have been prepared by the Office which
may provide the Subcommittee with additional insight into the nature and impact
of restitution activities. I am pleased to submit this material for your use.
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We hope, Mr. Chairman, that as the results of these pilot projects are disseminat-
ed widely, more jurisdictions will utilize their own resources to initiate similar
efforts. This is a time when all levels of government must look for ways to limit
their expenditures and conserve resources. Restitution is being shown to be a cost
effective alternative to old ways of doing business. Given the other benefits—
reduction in recidivism, provision of redress for victims, accountability on the part
of offenders, and meaningful employment opportunities for youth—we believe that
these restitution programs are resulting in greater community confidence in the
juvenile justice system process.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would now be pleased to respond to any questions.

STATEMENT OF DOUGLAS C. DODGE, BRANCH CHIEF, JUVE-
NILE JUSTICE SYSTEM PROGRAM, OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUS
TICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION, WASHINGTON, D.C.

Mr. Dopcge. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I appreciate the opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to appear today
before the House Education and Labor Subcommittee on Human
Resources to discuss efforts by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention to promote restitution by juvenile offend-
ers as an alternative to incarceration. It is a particular pleasure to
represent the Office before this subcommittee for the first time
since enactment of the Juvenile Justice Amendments of 1980.

As you know, the major share of the annual OJJDP appropri-
ation is allocated to the States according to a population formula
for use in assisting each State implement such juvenile programs
as the State deems appropriate. Smaller portions of our funds are
used for research and evaluation, technical assistance, coordination
of Federal activities, and discretionary grants which give special
emphasis to innovative prevention and treatment approaches.

In February of 1978, the Office announced a major competitive
funding initiative to support projects which utilized restitution by
juvenile offenders. Attention to this area was deemed appropriate
in light of the emphasis in section 224(a)(3) of the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act on programs which are “effective
means of diverting juveniles from the traditional juvenile justice
and correctional system, including restitution projects.* * *”

The major objectives of this initiative were to hold youth ac-
countable for their offenses, while providing an alternative disposi-
tion to incarceration. Accountability for misdeeds would be directly
targeted to benefit the victim and the community.

Programs would be further cost effective because of the avoid-
ance of the costs associated with incarceration of young offenders.
Maintenance of an individual youth in a residential facility costs
the Government from $24,000 to $43,000 per year, depending on the
locality and the level of security. The cost per participant in a
restitution project, on the other hand, is only $1,000, a significant
savings. Restitution participants enjoy the additional benefit of a
meaningful employment experience which helps in their rehablhta-
tion.

Restitution for this program is conceived of in its broadest sense.
It is defined to include payments by an offender in cash to the
victim or service either to the victim or the general community.
These payments are made under jurisdiction of the juvenile or
criminal justice process. OJJDP added a new dimension to mone-
tary restitution by providing funds which could be used to support
youth in employment. Provision of this employment support, to-



gether with the use of community service, are viewed as giving all
offenders an equal opportunity to participate, regardless of their
ability to pay.

Between September 30, 1978 and March 9, 1979, OJJDP funded
41 juvenile restitution projects in 26 States, Puerto Rico, and the
District of Columbia. Within this group, there were six statewide
agencies or organizations responsible for oversight of program im-
plementation at 50 local sites. Thirty-five other localities were
funded directly. Thus, 85 projects were supported under the initia-
tive.

Grants for the program were made for an initial 24 months. The
total amount awarded for the 2-year period was $19,564,000. Of the
original 41 awards, it is anticipated that 36 will be continued for a
third year.

To assist with project inyplementation, OJJDP awarded a techni-
cal assistance contract to thie National Office of Social Responsibili-
ty (NOSR), of Arlington, Va. NOSR has developed several training
manuals and conducted a number of small training conferences for
project personnel.

Six of the sites are being intensively evaluated by the Institute
for Policy Analysis (IPA) of Eugene, Oreg. IPA is also implement-
ing a management information system which provides a base of
data on all projects.

Monetary restitution is the most frequently used form of restitu-
tion under the projects, followed by community service and direct
service to victims. Two programs, Puerto Rico and Charleston, S.C,,
do not accept any cases involving monetary restitution. Wayne
County, Mich., accepts a monetary restitution referral only if the
youth already has a job. Otherwise, they rely on community service
placements.

The projects vary significantly in the scope of their activities.
The narrowest in scope receive an offender only after a restitution
plan and order has been developed. The youth will be placed and
restitution payments will be supervised. A few ancillary services
are also provided for the victims of offenders. About one-half of the
programs fall into this category. This type of project is more pre-
dominant among the statewide sites where individual projects tend
to be smaller and fewer persons are available for delivery of serv-
ices. The directly funded local projects are more likely to provide
ancillary services to victims.

The projects offer a range of employment opportunities, includ-
ing job development—locating and reserving slots for project
youth—and job assistance~--placing individual youths in a joh. Sub-
sidized work has the added ingredient of providing funds to support
the youth in a job.

Subsidized employment opportunities are offered by 69 percent of
the local projects and 62 percent of the statewide projects. Job
assistance is more popular than job development, although the
difference is marginal. Only 10 percent of the projects offer all
three services. Half of the local projects attempt to place the youth
in a permanent job, but only one statewide project with three sites
offers this service to participants.

The results which have been reported regarding the operation of
the various restitution projects are encouraging. Many of the objec-
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tives set for the program are being met. As of November 30, 1980,
the following data have been reported through our management
operation system.

The number of youth referred to the projects is 26,000; the of-
fenses which resulted in these referrals involved nearly 17,000
victims and $8.7 million in losses; *1dges have ordered $2.4 million
in monetary payments, 318,000 hours of community service, and
5,100 hours of direct service to victims; in 11,612 closed cases,
juveniles placed by restitution projects have paid $1,076,200 in
monetary restitution, worked 177,985 hours of community service,
and performed more than 4,157 hours of direct victim service; 78.7
percent of the youth referred are successfully completing their
original or adjusted restitution orders; this successful completion
rate goes to 87 percent if project ineligibles are removed from
consideration; 85.6 percent of the referrals have no subsequent
contact with the juvenile court after the offense that resulted in a
referral to the project and prior to their case closure.

We are very pleased with these results, and believe it is particu-
larly noteworthy that many young people are finding permanent
employment as a result of their placement in jobs by restitution
projects.

Besides the projects in this initiative, Mr. Chairman, OJJDP
funds have been used in a number of other instances to support
restitution. Some States have deemed it appropriate to use formula
grant funds to implement restitution programs.

I have brought with me a listing of OJJDP awards relating to
restitution. Several background papers and evaluation documents
have been prepared by the Office which may provide the subcom-
mittee with additional insight into the nature and impact of resti-
tution activities. I am pleased to submit this material for your use.
The information has been provided to the staff.

We hope, Mr. Chairman, that as the results of these pilot proj-
ects are disseminated widely, more jurisdictions will utilize their
own resources to initiate similar efforts. This is a time when all
levels of government must look for ways to limit their expenditures
and conserve resources. Restitution is being shown to be a cost
effective alternative to old ways of doing business. Given the other
benefits—reduction in recidivism, provision of redress for victims,
accountability on the part of offenders, and meaningful employ-
ment opportunities for youth—we believe that these restitution
programs are resulting in greater community confidence in the
juvenile justice system process.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would now be pleased to respond to
any questions.

Mr. CorrapA. Thank you, Mr. Dodge.

We will now listen to the testimony of Dr. Schneider. After he
has concluded his testimony, then we will open up the kearing for
questions to both witnesses. Dr. Schneider, will you please proceed
with your testimony.

[Prepared testimony of Dr. Peter R. Schneider follows:]

PrEPARED TESTIMONY OF PETER R. SCHNEIDER, PH. D., PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR,
InsTiTUTE OF PoLicy ANALYSIS, EUGENE, OREG.

The program announcement entitled “Restitution by Juvenile Offenders: An Al-
ternative to Incarceration” was issued by the office of Juvenile Justice and Delin-



quency Prevention on February 27, 1978. Following a two-stage applications process,
grants were awarded to 41 separate projects in 26 states, Puerto Rico, and the
District of Columbia. Six of the grants were awarded to statewide agencies or
organizations to oversee the implementation and administration of 50 local pro-
grams in selected counties or judicial districts. Altogether, the juvenile restitution
initiative has provided support for 85 programs—all but a few of which were created
as a direct result of federal funding.

Funding for the initiative was projected at $10 million per year over three years,
and initially $20 million was committed for the first two years. Third-year funding
will be considerably less than $10 million, however, for several reasons: Two of the
projects dropped out of the initiative during the first year; several others were
terminated after two years due to unsatisfactory performance or noncompliance;
and a number of others had saved enough money from their earlier grants to
continue at rio additional cost.

The framers of the initiative envisioned the program as a major research and
development effort designed to support and experiment with the use of restitution
as an alternative to traditional dispositions for young offenders, and specifically as
an alternative to incarceration. Its major objectives are set forth as follows:

(1) A reduction in the number of youth incarcerated.

(2) A reduction in recidivism of those youth involved in restitution programs.

(3) Provision for some redress or satisfaction with regard to the reasonable value
of the damage or loss suffered by victims of juvenile offenses.

(4) Increased knowledge about the feasibility of restitution for juveniles in terms
of cost effectiveness, impact on differing categories of youthful offenders, and juve-
nile justice process.

(5) An increased sense of responsibility and accountability on the part of youthful
offenders for their behavior.

(6) Greater community confidence in the juvenile justice process.

Reflected in these objectives are several specific concerns:

First, attention in this initiative clearly is directed at the policies of juvenile
courts concerning the more serious offender—the juvenile who has had prior contact
with the police and/or the court or who has committed, as a first offense, a crime
which would place him or her in jeopardy of incarceration. By requiring that
referrals to restitution programs be limited to adjudicated delinquents, and by
emphasizing that the programs be used as alternatives to incarceration, the initia-
tive obviously is targeted at a particular type of juvenile offender.

Second, concern for the impact of a restitution program on the juvenile justice
process as a whole is expressed in objective 4. One important issue is whether the
implementation of a restitution program, as an unintended and unwanted conse-
quence, will “widen the net” for juvenile offenders and ensnare more youth in the
system. This might occur if juvenile authorities view restitution as an attractive
disposition, especially when weighed against unattractive alternatives, and begin to
increase the number of petitions filed and the number of youth adjudicated. On the
other hand, there is the question of whether juvenile court judges will, in fact, use
restitution as an alternative disposition even when it is made available to them.

Third, assumptions are made concerning the impact of participation in a restitu-
tion program on both offenders and victims. Through direct restitution or communi-
ty service, offenders are expected to experience “‘an increased sense of responsibility
and accountability” (objective 5) and be less inclined to commit further offenses
(objective 2). Victims, by receiving redress or satisfaction with regard to their
damage or loss (objective 3), should manifest improved attitudes toward the juvenile
justice system and this, in turn, should promote greater community confidence in
the juvenile justice process (objective 8).

Fourth, it is suggested (by objective 4) that the feasibility of restitution may differ
by category of juvenile offenders. In other words, attention should be focused on the
characteristics of youth who demonstrate significantly different rates of success in
completing restitution contracts.

Fifth, concern is expressed (again in objective 4) about the cost-effectiveness of
restitution as compared with other, more traditional, juvenile court dispositions. A
related issue is the cost of different types of restitution programs, and especially the
cost and effectiveness of different restitution program segments.
~ To address the specific interests expressed in the objectives—as well as other
important research questions—the national evaluation of the juvenile restitution
initiative is organized into three major components:

The first major component of the evaluation is designed to assess the impact of
restitution on offenders and victims. So that the unique effects of restitution can be
isolated, experimental research designs—involving the random assignment of adju-
dicated delinquents and their victims into experimental and control groups—have
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been established in six project sites: Boise, ID; Clayton County, GA; Ventura
County, CA; Dane County, WI; Oklahoma County, OK; and Washington, DC. This
segment of the evaluation focuses on outcome measures such as rates of recidivism
and attitudinal shifts, and involves comparisons between restitution and non-restitu-
tion dispositions; programmatic restitution and non-programmatic restitution; and
restitution as a sole sanction vs. restitution coupled with other types of treatments.
While considerable data have been generated by these randomized controlled experi-
ments, the experiments are not yet complete and, therefore, the results are not
available for inclusion in this testimony. These data are perhaps the most valuable
we have, and T am hopeful that we can submit a preliminary report to this
committee at a later date.

The second major component of the evaluation relies primarily on the continuing
analysis of the case-by-case data accumulated through the Management Information
System (MIS) forms. This information reflects, at any given point in time, the status
of the initiative in terms of total referrals, case closures, amounts of monetary
restitution ordered and paid, total community and victim service hours worked,
characteristics of offenders and victims, and so forth. These data are received
weekly by the national evaluation and published in the Monthly Evaluation Reports
circulated to project directors and other interested parties (the report for February,
1981, is included as attachment A). These data shed light on such things as the
association between categories of offenders and successful completions, and the
success of the initiative in serving its target population.

The third major component of the evaluation addresses the policy issues associat-
ed with the initiative. This portion of the evaluation draws upon data from a variety
of sources, including MIS forms, descriptions of programs as contained in project
applications, interviews with project directors, and aggregate data from juvenile
courts throughout the country. The policy issues dealt with fall into several differ-
ent categories. One category of issues centers on the courts and involves questions
concerning changes in court practices as disclosed through the increased use of
restitution as a disposition, reductions in the number of youths incarcerated, and/or
increases in referrals and adjudications. Another category of issues involves the
appropriate procedures for funding and implementing restitution programs, and
calls for a comparison of restitution programs and, similarly, the cost of “add-on”
components such as psychiatric counseling, and subsidized employment.

As work on each of these components of the evaluation has progressed, a number
of research reports have been completed and several of these are appended to this
document as attachments. For the remainder of my testimony, I want to summarize
the information from these reports in terms of what we view as the paramount
issues addressed by this initiative.

Three questions, it seems to us, are supreme:

1. If restitution (including financial restitution, community service, and direct
service to victims) is available as an alternative disposition, will juvenile court
judges use it? And if so, under what conditions and for what types of offenders?

2. If restitution is ordered as a disposition for young offenders, can they be
expected to carry out the terms of their sentences or, as some critics have suggested,
are they “being set up for yet another failure?”

3. If restitution is a reasonable requirement to make of young offenders, is it
effecti\i)e in terms of its impact on juveniles, their victims, and the juvenile justice
system? .

The evaluation of the initiative is unfinished, and some of the most critical data—
those from the six experimental projects—are yet to be scrutinized. Thus the an-
swers to these questions must be regarded as tentative. The existing data indicate,
however, that restitution will be used if available, offenders can complete the
requirements, and an impact is discernible.

A survey we conducted in 1977 of a randomly-selected sample of juvenile court
judges disclosed overwhelming support and widespread use of restitution (see attach-
ment B). Typically, restitution was used for first offenders charged with minor
property crimes. But the initiative was directed at serious offenders in jeopardy of
incarceration, and the willingness of judges to use restitution as a sanction for this
class of delinquents was not known.

The record so far is very encouraging, with respect to both the number and type
of referrals.

First, the numbers: As of the first of this year (1981), the national evaluation had
documentation of more than 17,000 referrals and, by the time the projects catch up
on paperwork, the figure will be closer to 20,000. Ultimately, this initiative can be
expected to serve more than 30,000 offenders and, at least, an approximately equal
number of victims.
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Second, the type of offenders: The average referral to the projects in this initiative
is a 15%e-year-old male from a low income ($12,000) family, Most are white, but
nearly 25 percent are black and hundreds of other offenders are members of other
minorities. Data on the seriousness of these offenders—defined as a combination of
presenting offense and number of priors—are presented in Table 1.

These data show that about 54 percent of the referrals to restitution projects have
at least one prior offense, 21 percent have three or more, and 6.3 percent have more
than six priors. In terms of presenting offenses, 53 percent were referred for crimes
at the level of “serious property” and above, and about 22 percent had committed
offenses labeled either ‘“‘very serious property” or ‘‘very serious personal.” More
than 11 percent had three or more priors and presenting offenses at the level of
“serious property”’ and above—serious offenders by any definition.

Finally, the types and amounts of restitution ordered: About 18,000 victims were
involved in the offenses that resulted in referrals to restitution projects, and togeth-
er they reported more than $9 million in losses—about one-third of which was
recovered from insurance and other sources. As restitution for the remainder,
judges have ordered nearly $2.6 million in financial restitution, more than 340,000
hours of community service, and more than 5,200 hours of direct service to victims.

The extent to which juvenile offenders can successfully complete restitution re-
quirements is reflected, first, in some impressive statistics: Through the calendar
year 1980 slightly more than 12,000 cases had been closed and more than $1 million
in cash had been collected, more than 190,000 hours of community service worked,
and more than 4,000 hours of services for victims performed.

The proportion of juvenile offenders successfully completing restitution require-
ments was the topic of a research report issued by the national evaluation last year
(see attachment C). Again, the data are very encouraging: They indicate that about
88 percent of all referrals can be expected to complete restitution as ordered by the
courts.

Rates of successful completion of restitution orders varied, however, by several
predictable characteristics. Persons were more likely to complete restitution require-
ments successfully if they were first-time, minor offenders; full-time students; and
from white, middle-income families. For persons in these groups, rates of successful
completion averaged 90 percent or more.

However, the variation among groups is not great and the rates of successful
completion are high even for offenders at the other end of the continuum: The rates
are over 80 percent for persons convicted of very serious personal or property
crimes, with up to five priors, and from minority families with very low incomes.

Significant, too, is the amount of the restitution order: Persons are considerably
more likely to complete restitution if the amounts of money or community service
are small; but, even for large orders, the rates are about 75 percent. Interestingly,
there appeared to be no statistically significant differences in successful completion
between offenders in subsidized and non-subsidized jobs.

The most appropriate data for assessing the impact of restitution on offenders and
victims are being generated by the six experimental sites and, as previously men-
tioned, those experiments are still under way. Inferences concerning the effect of
restitution can be drawn, however, from data on the in-program reoffense rate; the
proportion of victim losses recovered through restitution; and the use of restitution
as a sole sanction compared with restitution as a condition of probation.

The term “in-program reoffense rate” refers to the percentage of offenders who
commit new offenses while still officially involved in a restitution project. In most
projects, the commission of a new offense results in dismissal from the project and
return to the juvenile court.

A research report which details the methodology of computing in-program reof-
fense rates is appended as attachment D. The methodology is somewhat complex
and will not be discussed here, except to say that it involves the calculation of the
probability that a certain proportion of offenders will commit new offenses after a
certain amount of time in a restitution project. The data used to calculate the rates
are drawn from official court records.

The in-program rzoffense rate for the initiative as a whole, based on an expected
amount of time in a restitution project of 6.2 months, is quite low at only 8.8
percent. In other words, less than one out of 10 referrals can be expected to commit
a new offense while still in the project.

In a manner similar to that of the successful completion rates, the in-program
reoffense rates vary by type of offender: Those more likely to commit new offenses
come from poorer families, have dropped out of school, and have more priors. There
are virtually no differences with respect to age, race, and gender and, surprisingly,
no differences attributable to the seriousness of the presenting offense.
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The in-program reoffense rate—an admittedly rough and, by itself, inadequate
measure of recidivism—suggests that restitution might be effective in reducing
subsequent offenses. Additional evidence of effectiveness may be found in a compari-
son between juveniles ordered to make restitution as a sole sanction—with no other
requirements—and juveniles ordered to make restituticn as a condition of proba-
tion.

There are undeniably good reasons for ordering restitution as a condition of
probation. For one thing, it provides judges with a joint sanction which seeks
satisfaction for both injured parties: the victim and the state. For another, probation
provides judges with a mechanism for enforcing the restitution requirement. At the
same time, there are good reasons for ordering restitution as a sole sanction. For
example, it frees the time of probation officers and thus may be more cost-effective.

A research report which compares restitution as a sole sanction with restitution
as a condition of probation in terms of successful completions and in-program
reoffense rates is appended as attachment E. The findings are straightforward:
offenders ordered to make restitution as a sole sanction have higher rates of
successful completion, and lower in-program reoffense rates, than those making
restitution as a condition of probation. The relationship remains constant even
when other important variables—such as number of priors, offense seriousness,
household income, school attendance, and size of restitution order—are statistically
controlled.

It is tempting to conclude from these findings that restitution probably is more
effective than probation, since restitution alone seems more effective than probation
involving restitution as a condition. However, there are competing explanations that
must be mentioned. For example, judges may select offenders they consider “gcod
risks” and excuse them from probation. Or, offenders on probation may be under
closer surveillance and their offenses more likely ‘to be detected. Until we have
analyzed the data from an experimental project in which this proposition is being
tested, it is impossible to eliminate these rival hypotheses.

Finally, let us look at the effectiveness of restitution from the standpoint of the
victim. In most cases, it can be assumed, the victim’s assessment of the effectiveness
?f restitution will depend upon the extent to which they are compensated for their
osses.

Preliminary data on the proportion of victim losses recovered indicate that resti-
tution, from the victims' viewpoint, is largely successful. On the average, victims
can expect to recover about 87 percent of their net losses—excluding insurance and
property return-—and 88 percent of their total losses. Offenders, on the average, pay
about 84 percent of the victims' net loss as restitution.

As expected, the percent of loss repaid as restitution declines as the amount of
loss increases. For net losses up to $250, offenders pay 94 percent, declining to 66
percent of net losses up to $1,000. For net losses over $1,000, offenders pay about 58
percent.

These figures are impressive, but they should be interpreted with caution. They
reflect, for example, only those cases in which monetary restitution was ordered.
Cases in which payment of financial restitution was unlikely probably resulted in
community service orders, and this would bias the percentage of victim loss recov-
ered in an upward direction.

The issues discussed. in this presentation do not exhaust those raised by the
restitution initiative, but they certainly are among the most critical. We have asked:
Will judges use it? Can offenders do it? And is it effective? The answers, as we see
them, are yes, yes, and probably. More data must be brought to bear on the question
of effectiveness, and those data are forthcoming from the experimental projects.
dBefore all the answers to all our questions are known, much more remains to be

one.

TABLE 1.—CROSS-TABULATION OF SERIQUSNESS LEVEL AND OFFENSE HISTORY 2

Prior and concurrent definquent offenses known to court officials 2

Seriousness of referral offense

Totat
0 1 H 3 4 5 6 percent

Number of cases 7009 3274 1863 1,162 696 444 969 15417

Victimless: Includes traffic accidents or tickets, status of-

fenses, drugs, alcohol, gambling, prostitution, and probation

violations 09 06 03 02 01 01 01 2.2
Minor offenses: Minor offenses not easily classified as proper-

ty or personal, such as disorderly CONQUCE...uruvvurrusessseessrserneees 07 04 01 6l 01 00 01 17
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TABLE 1.—CROSS-TABULATION OF SERIQUSNESS LEVEL AND OFFENSE HISTORY *—Continued

Prior and concurrent delinquent offenses known to court officials 2

Seriousness of referral offense
0 1 2 34 5 Total

percent
Minor property: Any property offense with loss/damage of
$10 or less except burglary and arson ..oeeeeueceeseessmeomsesmsceses 6.4 2.5 15 1.1 06 03 07 131
Minor personal: Resisting or obstructing an officer, coercion,
hazing, other similar UCR part il Offenses w......ecusrsseveessensusnne 08 05 04 02 01 01 02 2.2

Moderate property: Burglaries and arsons with loss/damage of

$10 or Jess and any other type of property offense with

loss/damage of $11 to $250 126 62 34 21 13 07 18 281
Serious property: Burglaries and arsons with loss/damage of

$11 to $250 and any other property offense with loss/

damage greater than $250 136 5.9 3.2 20 13 08 L3 283
Very serious property: burglaries and arsons with loss/damage

of $250 or more 66 37 23 13 08 06 16 169
Serious personal: Unarmed robberies and non-aggravated as-

saults With 10sS 0f $2Z80 OF 1855 ... vveereeecrsmerrsrssseensesesraoneonaras 18 0.8 0.5 03 01 01 02 38

Very serious personal: Unarmed robberies and non-aggravated
assaults with losses exceeding $250 and ali UCR Part !
personal crimes including rape, armed robbery, aggravated
assault 19 07 04 03 02 01 01 33

Total percent 455 212 121 15 45 29 63 1000

1 Offenses are coded by IPA personnel from the narrative description of the offense contained on the MIS forms. Coding Categories and rules are
those used in the Uniform Crime Reports (UCR). Transfer cases are not included. » .

2Theset figures include prior offenses resulling in a court contract cancurrent offenses. No incident is counted both as a prior offense and as a
concurrent offense.

STATEMENT OF PETER R. SCHNEIDER, PRINCIPAL INVESTIGA-
TOR OF THE JUVENILE RESTITUTION INITIATIVE, INSTITUTE
OF POLICY ANALYSIS, EUGENE, OREG.

Mr. ScaNEIDER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I want you and the other members of the subcommittee to know
how very pleased and proud I am to appear before your subcommit-
tee today.

I would like to call your attention to the prepared testimony
which I submitted. The first part of that testimony reiterates the
objectives of the initiative and discusses the research objectives
that the national evaluation had of those objectives. It explains
how the national evaluation is organized to address those issues.

The second half of the testimony summarizes some of the data
that we have on this program to date. And if I may, I would just
like to summarize that verbally rather than reading my statement.

Mr. CorraDpA. Please do so.

Mr. ScHNEIDER. There are several things we wanted to know
about this initiative when we began. There are some things we
already knew. We knew as a result of the survey we had done in
1977 that about 90 percent of the juvenile courts in the United
States were using restitution, and there was widespread support
among juvenile court judges for the use of restitution.

Most of these kids who were being referred to restitution pro-
grams were first-time or minor offenders. We did not know wheth-
er judges would be willing to use restitution for the wide range of
juvenile offenders that appear before our courts.

" We also did not know whether these kinds of offenders would be
able to complete restitution if they were ordered. There was a very
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great fear in the community that assigning these kids to a restitu-
tion program would be setting them up for another failure, conse-
quently, perhaps, leading to more delinquency.

Then, of course, the third thing we did not know was how effec-
tive restitution was. These were the kinds of things we wanted to
look at. Doug Dodge has gone over some of the data that we have
had to date.

The record as he said is very encouraging in terms of the num-
bers he mentioned. There were something like 1,600 offenders.
Those numbers are a month old. As of this month, we have 17,000
referrals and our data collection system runs about 6 weeks behind
the actual number of referrals to this project.

So right now out there in the United States are probably 20,000
juvenile offenders in restitution projects as a result of this initia-
tive. By the time the initiative is completed, there will be about
30,000 referrals. One thing he didn’t mention was the kind of
offenders who are being referred to this program. Generally these
offenders are 15% years old, white males; however, 25 percent of
them are blacks and hundreds of others represent other minorities.
They tend to come from low-income families. The average annual
family income of the referrals is about $12,000, but many are below
that.

In terms of the seriousness of these offenses and the kind of
offenders that are being referred, 54 percent of them have at least
one prior offense. Twenty-one percent of the referrals have three
prior offenses, and 6.3 percent have six or more prior offenses.

In terms of the presenting offenses, the offenses for which they
are referred to the restitution project, 53 percent were for crimes
which the Uniform Crime Reports referred to as serious property
offenses, and 22 percent had committed offenses which would be.
labeled as either very serious property or very serious personal
offenses.

Eleven percent of these offenders had three or more prior of-
fenses and had presenting offenses at the level of serious property
or above. I think you would agree these are very serious offenders
by any definition.

Doug also mentioned the number of victims and the amounts of
restitution which are being ordered. Again, those numbers are a
month out of date. There are 18,000 victims, more than $9 million
in losses. Judges have ordered almost $3 million in restitution and
more than 300,000 hours of community service.

In terms of the completion, he mentioned that the statistics are
very impressive. More than $1 million has been paid, 190,000 hours
of community service work completed, and 4,000 hours of direct
service provided to victims.

The proportion of juvenile offenders that are successfully com-
pleting the restitution requirements is, as he mentioned, about 88
percent.

Now, there are a couple of things I would like to say about that.
First, the most successful referrals to this project are the kind of
kids you would expect to be successful. These are first-time offend-
ers who are from middle-income families and are full-time stu-
dents.
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The successful completion rates among those kinds of offenders is
90 percent or better. However, the variation among these groups—
the different groups of kids in this initiative—is not very great.
The rate for successful completion is high even for offenders at the
other end of the continuum. The rate is over 80 percent successful
completion for persons convicted of very serious personal or proper-
ty crimes, and for those who have up to five prior offenses and
those from minority families with very low incomes.

In fact, I think the smallest rate of successful completion, which
is 77 percent, is for the offenders who have six or more prior
offenses. So even among those categories of offenders the successful
completion rate is high.

It is important to look at these from a policy standpoint. If you
nave a limited amount of resources to expend on a restitution
program itself——

Mr. Corrapa. Excuse me just a second. Just for the sake of the
record, when you talk about successful completion, how do you
define that concept?

Mr. ScHNEIDER. Successful completion is completion of the resti-
tution requirement as it is originally made by the judge or as it is
adjusted by the judge.

Now the proportion of the cases which are adjusted is very small.
I think it is on the order of about 6 percent, and that data, by the
way, is contained in a report which I submitted to you as an
appendix to my statement. It is a technical report, and it is entitled
“The Monthly Evaluation Report for February, 1981.” It is before
you.

The last thing I would like to mention is the effectiveness of
restitution.

Now, I will have to be somewhat cautious here our data is not
fully complete yet.

The data that we have on effectiveness is coming from our ex-
perimental sites. We have eight experimental programs from var-
ious places in the United States. In those experimental programs,
we have juveniles who are being randomly referred to restitution
and nonrestitution dispositions and among different kinds of resti-
tution projects. Now, those kids can be compared with kids who
are doing other kinds of things, straight probation or incarceration
or counseling or what have you.

That is what we want to measure: the effectiveness against the
other kind of dispositions.

Those experiments are not complete. We have some data from
those experiments, but I would rather not discuss those data until
we have them all and have had a chance to analyze them properly.

We can look at several other things which will give us an indica-
tion as to how effective these programs can be.

One thing we can look at is the in-program reoffense rate. By
that I mean the probability that a youth will reoffend while he is
still in the program, nominally under the supervision of the juve-
nile court.

Another thing we can look at is restitution from the standpoint
of the victim. What proportion of the victim losses can be expected
to be recovered under restitution projects?

79-488 O—81——2
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Then, the third thing is to compare restitution as a sanction

against probation which involves restitution. I think if we can
make that comparison we can get some kind of an idea as to the
unique impact of restitution.
" The in-program reoffense rate is, I think, pretty low. On the
average, a referral will stay in the restitution program for 6.2
months. The probability of reoffending while in the program for 6.2
months is only 8.8 percent. So, at least on the average, about 1 out
of 10 will reoffend while still in the program, and again I caution
you this is while he is under the nominal supervision of the juve-
nile court.

The data on reoffense after they have completed the program is
what we are looking for in experimental sites. We don’t have that
yet.

Mr. Corrapa. Excuse me. You have made reference to 8.8 per-
cent as a rate of reoffense when a youngster is still in the program.
How do you compare that to reoffense levels for straight probation
or other types of programs?

Mr. ScHNEIDER. Those reoffense rates vary a lot across different
kinds of probation programs.

My understanding is that the rate of reoffense in a restitution
project is considerably below the revocation rates of kids who are
on straight probation.

Maybe Doug knows this.

Mr. Dopge. We don’t have specific data. We had some experi-
ences under previous programs involving diversion where the reof-
fense rates for specific projects run around 25 percent. But we
don’t have studies directly on point. The literature and studies are
pretty skimpy.

Mr. CorrapAa. When you say that 8.8 percent is a low rate, on
what do you base that judgment?

Mr. ScHNEIDER. I base it on the judgment of what can be expect-
ed for a juvenile under any kind of a disposition in a juvenile court
program. We are talking frequently, Mr. Chairman, about rates of
reoffense of up to 60 percent and more for some of the kinds of
programs that juveniles are in. We are also talking about a serious
kind of an offender. We are not talking about the first-time minor
offender here. We are talking about kids who have committed quite
a number of offenses prior to being admitted to this program.

Another thing I think we can look at—and I am not quite sure
what the mechanism is which explains these findings—but we have
some data comparing kids who are on restitution as a sole sanction,
no other requirements, and kids who are on restitution projects as
a condition of probation. These findings are straightforward, and I
think very interesting.

Across all kinds of offenders, kids who are making restitution as
a sole sanction are doing better in terms of successfully completing
the restitution project and having lower reoffense rates than kids
who are on probation programs where restitution is made a condi-
tion of probation. I find that very interesting.

Then the last thing I want to mention is the effectiveness of
restitution from the standpoint of the victim. Now, I think we can
assume in most cases that a victim's assessment of the effective-
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ness of a restitution program will depend upon the extent to which
he is compensated for his losses.

We have only preliminary data, and we are still working on this,
but based on data which occurred as of last month, victims can
expect to recover 87 percent of their net losses.That figure excludes
recovery from insurance and from property return.

The amount of loss that they can expect to return varies as you
go from low losses to high losses. They can expect to recover up to
100 percent of losses ranging between zero and $250 and then that
amount of return, the amount of recovery goes down as the amount
of the loss increases. )

For losses of up to $1,000, they can expect to recover about 66
percent of their net loss and for losses of over $1,000, it is about 58
percent.

Again, these figures are impressive, but I urge you to be some-
what cautious in interpreting them. These data are based only on
the cases in which raonetary restitution was ordered.

In some cases, you have very high losses. We have a case in our
files in which two youths in a New England State derailed a
freight train, and the amount of loss was $250,000. It was unrealis-
tic and perhaps unreasonable to expect these two young persons to
repay $250,000. I believe the amount they actually paid was nomi-
nal. It was on the order of $200 or $300. Then they worked in some
community service.

That particular loss figure is not accounted for in these statistics.

Just to summarize, we have looked at three things. One is, if
restitution is available as a disposition for juvenile court judges,
will they use it? I think the record speaks for that. Judges will use
it. We also have asked if juveniles are ordered to make restitution,
can they do it? Again, I think the record speaks to that. They can
do it and do it successfully. Thirdly, we have asked whether restitu-
tion is effective as a disposition for juvenile offenders. The answer
here is maybe. It might be stronger to say probably. When we get
the results from our experimental sites we will know a lot more
about that. I have research reports on each of the topics that I
have spoken to as attachments to my testimony and I will be glad
to answer any questions you have.

Mr. Corrapa. Thank you, Dr. Schneider.

We will now go into a questioning session for the witnesses, and I
will recognize Mr. Petri for questions of the witness at this time.

Mr. Petri. I must apologize if I ask some very basic questions,
but I can remember as a kid growing up that judges used to do this
all the time. What is the need for it—this is not something that
has never happened before.

Mr. ScuNemER. No, sir. As I mentioned, restitution was being
used by about 90 percent of the courts prior to this initiative
coming into effect, and there was widespread support for it. But
the use was very predictable. It was for minor offenders, and it was
for first-time offenders. It was most often used as a diversion in
which the kids were given an opportunity to either go into the
restitution project or be referred to the juvenile court for adjudica-
tion and for another disposition. This initiative addresses a com-
pletely different population. This addresses the population of youth
who are adjudicated, and the restituticn is then made a sentence,
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“not a choice that they have as an alternative to going into a
diversion program. Another thing is that it deals with a much
more serious kind of offender.

Mr. Perrl. Do you know how many are diverted from the mili-
tary service by this? That is another traditional thing that has
been done in reality—at least out where I live, I think. More
serious potential offenders, first offenders, were told if they could
convince a Marine recruiter to take them, maybe they would not
get a criminal record, but the town didn’t want them around any
more.

If you are just moving people from that approach to some other
program——

Mr. ScHNEIDER. I am sorry. I cannot answer that. I do not know
what numbers of kids are brought in here who otherwise might go
into the military.

Mr. PerrI. Is this program a potential program for being includ-
ed in a block grant in the new budget that is coming up?

Mr. DopGE. The details of the new block grant program have not
yet been released. It is definitely possible that the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act could be included. As you know,
the major portion of the current program is a block grant program.
States are utilizing these funds for purposes they deem appropri-
ate.

In your own State of Wisconsin, restitution has been very suc-
" cessful in the counties where it started out. The number of counties
participating has been increased.

Other States, including South Carolina, and Iowa, are also
moving to implement statewide projects. As restitution becomes
broadly accepted, we expect that more and more States will use
their block grant funds to continue or to initiate restitution efforts.

Mr. Perrr. But I am just wondering if you had any initial reac-
tion to the possibility it might be included in the block grant? Do
you think that would be a good thing for the program or a bad
thing? Do you think people, if they had the money and had the
freedom to do what they wanted with it, would expend efforts in
this sort of area or spend the money for something else and not as
much on this particular effort?

Mr. Dobge. It is hard for me to respond to that question definite-
ly. My hope is that because of the acceptance of restitution and
other programs now supported, the activities authorized by the
JJDP Act would be continued. I realize that there are a lot of
demands and a lot of needs out there, but these efforts do have
pretty broad acceptance at this time. The reason they are accepted
is because we were able to test these concepts utilizing our discre-
tionary funds.

Mr. Perr1. Thank you.

Mr. CorraDA. Mr. Williams?

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I welcome both of you gentlemen to the hearing today.

We hear a lot in Washington these past days and weeks about
cost benefit and programs breaking even or maybe showing a little
profit at the end of the year.

I am just wondering if you have a cost benefit study that demon-
strates the worth on that basis of your program?
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Mr. ScunNEeiDEr. I will speak first, and I think Doug might have
something to say about that. We do have a cost effectiveness com-
ponent as a part of the evaluation. But we have not had a chance
to implement that yet. We did not know these hearings were going
to be held when they are being held. If we had known that they
were going to be held in March, we could have had those data
available for you. It takes about 5 months to complete that kind of
study. We have the instrumentation to do it, but we don’t have
that. We have not done it yet. But I think that Doug has gathered
some statistics.

Mr. Dopge. We have looked at the data in a very rough way.
Looking at the seriousness of the offenses committed by individual
youngsters coming into the programs, it is fair to project that 20
percent of these 16,000 youths are prime candidates for incarcer-
ation. That is 3,200 juveniles who were prime candidates for incar-
ceration.

With on average annual cost of incarceration being approximate-
ly $24,000 using the lower figure, it would cost $76,800,000 to
incarcerate these youths for 1 year. Even if we assumed that they
would only be incarcerated for the average length of participation
in the project, which is 6.2 months, the cost for just these 3,200
youths would be around $38,400,000. Beyond that, there is cost
benefit because of the repayment to the victim in the community.
Looking at the November data, since we do not yet have the
benefit of the latest report that Peter mentioned, if the value of the
performed community and direct victim service is computed on the
basis of an average minimum wage of $3.10 per hour, the amount
paid back is $1,756,665.50.

That figure is increasing all the time. I did not project out what
it would be eventually, but the total should be substantially higher
than that. Thus, these are cost savings from reduction in incarcer-
ation and payments back to the community. There are probably
additional long-term cost savings on account of the fact that many
of these youths do not come back through the juvenile justice
system. We have not computed that. We hope the cost-benefit study
by the Institute for Policy Analysis will reflect on many of these
issues.

Mr. WiLLiams. It occurs to me that an excellent way to improve
the cost effectiveness of this program then would be to not incar-
cerate prime candidates for incarceration, but simply put them in
the restitution program, subtract what it would have cost them to
put them in jail, where perhaps they ought to be, therefore proving
that this program is really cost beneficial, but the result on society
is that these people are out when they ought to be in. Is that a
possibility here?

In other words, if we—let me put it another way—if we allow the
cost-benefit demands to control the future of these kinds of pro-
grams, then perhaps we don’t jail people who ought to be jailed
because it is the only way we can show this program is going to
pay for itself and continue what appears to be a good program.

Mr. Dopge. We are not driven totally by cost-benefit issues.
There certainly are some youngsters who, by virtue of the commis-
sion of violent offenses, do not fall within this target population.

~ They are most appropriately placed in incarcerative settings. We
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see from this program, however, that despite the participation of
offenders who might otherwise have been incarcerated, there was
not any greater risk to society.

- As a matter of fact, it appears, based on the preliminary inter-
pretation of data, that there is substantially less risk to society at
substantially less cost. Therefore, we would assert that this is an
effective means for dealing with juvenile offenses.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Do I understand that the judge makes the deci-
sion?

Mr. DopGe. That is correct. In this particular program the judge
has the authority to impose the restitution sanction.

Mr. WiLLiams. Prisons or juvenile institutions are places of reha-
bilitation. We all know that and have myriad data to prove it.

Well, then, I am wondering how it is that we rehabilitate people
through this program instead of through that marvelous program
called the prison system because we are keeping them out of that
system by having them in this one. What about rehabilitation? Are
we unconcerned about that?

Mr. Dobge. No. Rehabilitation is a primary concern of this par-
ticular program. The process of placing young people in a restitu-
tion setting, requiring them to come to grips with the kind of loss
that they have perpetrated on an individual or business, and
having them make amends for that is rehabilitative in and of itself.
Beyond that, they are provided with employment experience in
supervised work groups or in the private sector. The projects have
been amazingly successful in obtaining private sector employment.

Many of the participants are gcing on to be retained in private
sector employment. There is a fair amount of evidence to suggest
that this employment experience for youth is indeed rehabilitative
and often keeps them out of further trouble.

Mr. WiLLiams. A number of the States chosen, 26 States that are
part of this experiment——

Mr. DopGe. They were selected through a competitive process.
We went through a two-stage application process with the initial
stage being concept papers or preapplications. We received 117
preapplications from throughout the country. Of that group we
requested that 54 submit final applications; 43 or 44 actually sub-
mitted final applications and from that group, 41 were funded. Our
selection was based upon degree of compliance with the terms and
conditions of the guidelines, which were fairly restrictive. We par-
ticularly looked for agreements by the appropriate courts to par-
ticipate in the restitution effort. There were some requirements
that the courts found difficult at first, but as we have gone along,
the courts have seen that they can use restitution with this level of
offender effectively.

Mr. WiLLiams. Generally what were the guidelines for applica-
tions by the States?

Mr. Dopge. The guidelines applied to States and localities. They
had to submit applications in which they outlined clearly that they
would develop a monetary payment or community or victim service
restitution project. They had to agree to refer a portion of their
serious offenders to the project in lieu of incarceration. They had to
outline how they would operate the project, what they would do in
terms of community service placements, how they would go about
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setting up job assistance or job placements, and generally lay out
exactly how they were going to operate.

They had to include data and statistics on the levels of juvenile
offenses in the past.

They had to provide a judicial agreement or memorandum of
understanding, indicating that the courts understood what the pro-
ject was about and what the requirements were.

Mr. WiLLiams. What agency of the State was the usual appli-
cant? Which agency in the State government?

Mr. Dobge. It varied. In New Jersey, for example, the Office of
Administration of State Courts applied. In Nevada and Wisconsin,
it was the Department of Human Services. In the State of Wash-
ington it was initially the Department of Human Services. Later,
the State Criminal Justice Council became the applicant and man-
aged that particular effort.

Mr. WiLLiams. I note that five initial awards were discontinued.
What was the reason for that, Mr. Schneider?

hMr. ScHNEIDER. I think that Mr. Dodge is the person to ask about
that.

Mr. WirLiams. Mr. Dodge.

Mr. Dobge. One project withdrew because they had misunder-
stood the criteria on referrals and the alternative to incarceration
requirements. They interpreted the laws of the States to prohibit
their participation.

Four of them were eliminated from third-year consideration be-
cause of circumstances in their jurisdiction. They did not have the
number of referrals to make the program cost effective for them to
participate or they were not effectively managing their projects.
We did not permit them to go on to the third year.

In addition to the five that I have mentioned, in one of the State
projects we eliminated 17 of the 19 counties because of a failure to
meet the goals and objectives that they themselves set out in their
application.

Mr. WiLLiams. Were there awards then being made to replace
the five discontinued applicants?

Mr. Donce. We do not anticipate that at this time.

Mr. WiLLiams. Do you anticipate adding any States?

Mr. Dobge. Not at this time. We have invested a total of almost
$23 million in this effort. Before we plan for the future, we get
more information from the evaluation about the effectiveness of
restitution for specific offenders. We need. to look at the specific
settings and characteristics of projects that make them most suc-
cessful. Then we hope to move toward replication of successes in
other States or localities.

Mr. Wiriams. Have you considered sharing appropriate informa-
tion with States to allow those States that will to replicate the
effort on their own without joining this program or requesting any
of your funds?

Mr. Donge. Yes, Congressman Williams. We have a very active
process right now. Our technical assistance contractor, the Nation-
al Office of Social Responsiblity, is involved in providing technical
assistance to States. They have provided assistance in South Caroli-
na, lowa, and numerous other jurisdictions. They have developed
manuals about the implementation of restitution projects. They
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have become highly skilled in helping States conceptualize restitu-
tion and implement that conceptualization.

I have worked closely with the NOSR staff to discuss effective
assistance. We are all available, to help in any way a State or
locality that is interested in initiating and operating a restitution
project.

Mr. ScungiDER. I would like to point out it has not been men-
tioned today that in addition to the restitution projects that have
been funded by this initiative since it has gone into effect, there
have been, I think, 19 new restitution projects that have come into
existence in the State of Wisconsin, and I believe 14 or 15 new
restitution projects that came into existence in the State of Minne-
sota.

Each of those States has more than half of its counties with
active restitution projects.

Mr. WirLiams. Outside of your program.

Mr. ScHNEIDER. Outside of the initiative. The State of North
Carolina, in Raleigh, N.C., has a restitution project. In South Caro-
lina, there has been legislation introduced, which, I believe, will
result in the sponsorship of the statewide restitution project there.
That is outside the initiative.

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. CorraDpA. Thank you, Mr. Williams.

Let me ask you, when these youngsters who went to these resti-
tution programs came before the judge, which were the options
that the judge had in addition to sending these youngsters to this
program?

Mr. DopGe. There are a myriad of options available to the court.

In some jurisdictions the court can divert a child without enter-
ing any kind of a delinquency finding. In other instances, if they
make a delinquency finding, the youth can be placed on probation.
The offenders can be given a suspended commitment. They can be
committed to a mental institution, if there is a history of mental
difficulties. They can be committed to the Division of Youth Serv-
ices. It is that agency, in those jurisdictions which have no control
over placement options, that would determine whether or not the
youth is placed in a secure facility.

Some judges have authority to make specific commitments to a
specific, secure facility, as in the case of Pennsylvania. There are
several options the court has available.

Mr. CorrabpA. Is there a way to determine where the youngsters
that participated in these projects would have gone in terms of
action taken by the juvenile judges had this program not existed?

Mr. ScuNEeIDER. In each experiment site we-have a control group.
In all eight, except in Clayton County, Ga, outside of Atlanta and
in Oklahoma City, there is a control group in which kids who are
not going through the restitution project receive whatever disposi-
tion they would have received if the restitution project had not
been in existence.

In other words, these kids will be processed just as they would
have been had there been no restitution project at all. So we can
look at what happened to the kids in that control group and that
will tell us exactly what would have happened to the kids in the
restitution groups if the restitution project had not been there.
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Also, we can look at two kinds of data: seriousness of the offense
and the offender. We can look at that information and make infer-
ences from that as to what would likely happen to those youths.

As I mentioned, 11 percent of all those in the initiative had three
or more prior offenses and had committed offenses which the uni-
form crime report labels very serious property or very serious
personal offenses. There is a reasonable expectation that those
youths would have been committed to a facilitiy or placed under a
stringent form of probation.

Mr. Corrana. Would you be able to conclude, based on the point-
which you have reached in evaluating this program, how these
youngsters who were referred to the restitution programs fared in
terms of their rehabilitation vis-a-vis those who did not participate
in the program, who instead just followed the regular probation
program or of the other options available to the judges?

Mr. ScENEIDER. If you would give us just a few more months, we
will have that data for you.

Again, that is the data which is coming out of the experimental
site.

In each one of those sites we are following the youth, in both
experiment and control groups, up to 18 months. We are looking
not only at the extent of their reoffense, primary recidivism data,
but we are also looking at the attitudes the youth have after
completing their respective dispositions and the attitude of the
victim. We will have that information for you in just a few months.

Mr. CorraDA. I believe of course it would be very important to be
able to carry on that evaluation to the point of determining reha-
bilitative qualities of this program. Enough has already been in-
vested to justify going through with that effort and particularly
because so far from what we have heard and seen today, the
results of the program appear to be quite encouraging. It would be
worthwhile to follow through with a full evaluation, as Mr. Wil-
liams suggested before, seeing to it that whatever information is
developed from these evaluations is shared with the State agencies
%_nvolved in juvenile justice and crime delinquency prevention ef-

orts.

Let me ask Mr. Dodge. On page 5 of your testimony, you made
reference to some figures. You indicated that 78.7 percent of the
youth referred are successfully completing their original or adjust-
ed restitution orders and that completion rate would go up to 87
percent if project ineligibles are removed from consideration.

What do you mean by project ineligibles?

Mr. DopGe. Mr. Chairman, in some of the projects, the intake
occurs before the actual determination and order of restitution is
issued. In some instances, a youth coming into a project may not
clear the initial screening. In other cases, the victim may not be
known, the victim may refuse to participate, or, for some other
reason, the youth does not receive an order of restitution. An
intake form has been filed on those youth. They go to IPA so they
are li{ncluded in the statistics of that particular jurisdiction as an
intake.

However, no restitution has been ordered and there has been no
failure on the part of that youth to participate. Then those youth
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- for whom an intake has occurred, but who have not received a
" restitution order, are the project ineligibles.

Of the youth that actually have received restitution orders, ap-
proximately 88 percent are successful in completing their original
or adjusted order.

Mr. CorraDA. At what point in the process is the decision made
about restitution? Is this at a hearing before the juvenile court
judge or at soine other point? When is that critical decision made?

Mzr. Dopce. The critical decision on restitution is made after the
youth has gone through a fact-finding hearing and the court is
determining what, if any, sanction it is going to impose upon the
youth.

In many of the projects, a presentence screening process occurs.
At that point it is determined whether restitution is appropriate
for a youth, as well as appropriate amounts. That material is
presented to the judge at a disposition hearing. Sometimes there is
a hiatus between the actual factfinding hearing and disposition. In
other jurisdictions, there is not and it is at the critical disposition
point that the judge enters an order.

Mr. CorrapA. So those who go to this restitution program do go
as a result of orders in most of the cases or orders entered by the
pertinent authority in the State.

Mr. DopGe. That is correct.

Mr. Corrana. Now, can a young person choose not to participate
in this kind of a program, or is participation voluntary? Is the
participation fully dependent on that decision or on the determina-
tion by the judge or the pertinent authority?

Mr. Dopge. Mr. Chairman, in most jurisdictions, it is not a
voluntary decision.

One jurisdiction, the District of Columbia, has implemented a
voluntary decisionmaking process. The youth can choose not to
participate. Then he or she is subject to the other dispositions
available to the court. We see from the data that very few youth
are refusing to do that, in the range of about 5 percent.

Mr. Corrapa. How and by whom is the determination made in
terms of how much restitution is to be paid or what form that
restitution will take?

Mr. Dobge. That is made by the judge based upon recommenda-
tions of the project and/or probation staff contained in presentence
reports.

Mr. Corrapa To what extent is the youngster involved in the
process of making that determination by the judge?

Mr. Dopge. It varies as to how the youth becomes involved. The
youth are generally involved in one way or another. In some proj-
ects there is mediation between the victim and the offender. The
youth’s lawyer may be involved in actual face-to-face discussions, if
the victim chooses, to determine the lavel of restitution.

The youth are always represented by a lawyer at the disposi-
tional hearings, a lawyer able to address the level of loss or the
kind of community service. The project staff work with the youth
in the screening process to help develop restitution recommenda-
tions. Youth are thus involved in that decisionmaking.
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Mr. CorrabpA. Dr. Schneider, which of the various models of
restitution programs you have evaluated or examined seems to
work the best?

Mr. Scuneper. Well, again if I had known you were going to ask
me that last week, I could have been here with that kind of
information. I tried to anticipate your questions as best I possibly
could and I did not anticipate that one. We are collecting data on
the organization of restitution projects and, in fact, we have collect-
ed that data twice to make sure that it is accurate. We have not
yet analyzed our data with any different kind of restitution project.
So, I am sorry I really cannot answer that.

Mr. Corrapa. We are looking forward, of course, to your supply-
ing that information to the subcommittee as soon as it is available,
and you have finished your evaluation. Maybe my second question
will also fall in this category.

Mr. ScuNEIDER. I hope not.

Mr. CorrADA. If you were asked to assign the single best restitu-
tion program you could, based on your survey, what would it look
like? Would you have an idea at this time?

Mr. ScuNEIER. That is an excellent question. It is very difficult.
There is a tremendous variety of restitution programs out there.
There are 85 different projects, and I would say that even in the
statewide projects which have been implemented by a single
agency, there is variation. It seems like—well, I hesitate to say.
Based on the experience that I have, which is not reflected in our
data, but on the experience of visiting a lot of the projects and
talking with the project directors and talking with judges, and I
have spent quite a bit of time talking with members of the Nation-
al Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges, and it seems as if
the major ingredient is a judge who is willing to use restitution and
to use it for a wide range of offenders and the existence of the
resources in that project for insuring that every youth referred to
it has an opportunity to carry out the requirements of the restitu-
tion order. Those seem to be the major ingredients rather than the
design of the project itself, but we will have more information on
that at a future point.

Mr. Corraba. We know, of course, from general experience that
one of the problems associated with juvenile delinquency relates to
the fact of unemployment, not having a job and so on.

Do you have any data on whether youngsters can find jobs with
greater ease after being in a restitution program than the average
youngster who is in another program, such as probation?

Mr. ScHNEIDER. We have no comparative data, but we do have
some information about the proportion of youth who are continu-
ing to work after they have completed their restitution require-
ments and the restitution program.

This information is contained in a table which is in the monthly
evaluation report for February 1981, and incidentally we have
issued one each month the past 2 years.

Because of a shortfall in our funding, we are going to have to
limit the number of reports we are going to be doing in the future
to one every other month. We have been putting one out each
month. There is a table which is entitled “Status of Youth,” at case
closure, table 10, a monthly evaluation report. That table details
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the condition of the youth after they have completed the restitu-
-tion requirement.

About 30 percent do not have jobs, but do not want jobs. There is
about another 25 percent who do not have jobs, but want jobs and
there is another approximately 28 to 29 percent that are continu-
ing to work. The remainder fall into a category which we define as
other residual category. They are not working for a variety of
‘reasons, but it looks as if more than half of the youth would be
able to continue in their positions if they wanted to.

Mr. CorrapA. I do not have any further questions at this time.
The subcommittee would like to express its appreciation both to
Mr. Dodge and Dr. Schneider for their testimony today, which will
prove to be very informative and helpful to us.

Thank you very much. We appreciate your appearing before us
today.

The next witness will be Dennis Maloney, juvenile restitution
project manager. He works with the Division of Coramunity Serv-
ices, Bureau of Children, Youth and Families in Madison, Wis.

Mr. Maloney, we welcome you to this hearing, and we ask you to
please proceed with your testimony.

[Prepared testimony of Dennis Maloney follows:]

PrepaRED TEsTIMONY OF DENNIS MaLonNEYy, JUVENILE REstiTUTION PROJECT MAN-
AGER, DivisioN oF CoMMUNITY SERVICES, BUREAU FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND
FamiLies, Mapison, Wis.

The Wisconsin Juvenile Restitution Project is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Health and Social Services in the Division of Community Services,
Bureau for Children, Youth and Families. There are twelve juvenile court jurisdic-
tions participating in the project. The participating jurisdictions are spread across
the state and represent urban, suburban, rural and tribal demographic areas. They
are Ashland County, Chippewa County, Douglas County, Eau Claire County, Fond
du Lac County, the City of Green Bay, Kenosha County, Marathon County, Meno-
minee Tribal Court, Qutagamie Youth Services, Racine County and Rock County.

The primary objectives of the project are to: (1) hold juvenile offenders account-
able for delinquent acts; (2) reduce recidivism levels of participating offenders; (3)
insure compensation for victims of juvenile offenses; (4) improve the image of the
juvenile justice system; and (5) provide an effective means of treating juvenile
offenders within the community.

The project is staffed by one central office manager, one central office administra-
tive assistant and a total of fourteen local program staff for all twelve jurisdictions.
The project benefits from a training and technical assistance contract with the
University of Wisconsin-Extension Criminal Justice Institute and an evaluation
contract with Carkhuff and Associates. In addition the Division of Community
Services Juvenile Delinquency Prevention Consultants provide legal and juvenile
justice system consultation. Due to the limited staffing resources of the program the
local staff have had to rely on the involvement, cooperation and assistance from the
participating juvenile court jurisdictions. Without exception such cooperation has
been provided.

The statewide project has an annual budget of approximately $450,000 including
technical assistance and evaluation costs. The local projects range in cost from
$16,000 to $66,000.

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS

Restitution completion

The Project has worked with 803 juvenile offenders. Of these 484 have already
completed restitution. The court ordered amount of financial restitution has recent-
ly surpassed $200,000 of which $103,000 has been paid. In -addition 4,907 hours of
community service has been provided while 554 hours of victim service has been
fulfilled. a recent interim evaluation report illustrated that 85 percent of the par-
ticipant youth fulfill their obligation on schedule.
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Seriousness level of participants

OJJDP designed the national restitution initiative to work with serious juvenile
offenders in threat of incarceration. The Wisconsin Project has worked with
ofenders representing the following levels of seriousness.

: ) Percent

- Victimless. 1
Minor offenses . " 1

" Minor property ... : - 3
Minor personal 1
Moderate property 24
SOTIOUS PLOPEILY tvueeeererirereeeniivenrereeseseessteserssesassaisiosiveinnmernasassssrsessssssassessssssasessastaseransserens 38

- Very Serious property 26
Serious personal 3
Very serious personal " 2

As is illustrated the majority of offenders fall within the Serious Property to Very
Serious Property categories. The average number of prior delinquent offenses is 3
percent.

Reduction in incarceration rates.

The State of Wisconsin in involved in a major-deinstitutionalization effort. The
state has adopted a new children’s code which places more restrictions on placement
of juvenile offenders in correctional facilities.

In addition the state has launched a community based alternative effort entitled
Youth and Family Aids that provides counties with the option to develop local
programs or purchase state correctional services. The jurisdictions participating in
the Restitution Project have reduced their incarceration placements from a total of
242 in the year prior to initiation of the projects to 148 during the first year of the
program. In addition the Rock County program has accepted referral of nine juve-
niles who were petitioned for waiver to adult court and were in definite threat of
placement in adult facilities. To date not one of the offenders has been incarcerated
in an adult or juvenile correctional facility.

Statue at case closure

Over 80 percent of the youth are living with their family at case closure while 13
percent have been placed in non-secure settings and only 8 percent have been
committed to secure facilities. The percentage of youth who have committed subse-
quent offenses during project participation is 7.31 percent.

The evaluation illustrates that 37 percent of the youth maintain their employ-
ment after case closure.

System impact

The Restitution Project has provided Wisconsin the framework for testing a skills
based model for treating juvenile delinquents within their home community. This
skills based approach reduces the occurance of subjective assessments, irrelevant
and inapplicable dispositions, unnecessary incarceration and long lasting negative
labeling. Instead a skill based program provides juvenile court systems with the
capability to complete valuable and strength seeking assessments, carry out practic-
cal and useful dispositions, maintain and strengthen family situations and initiate
positive community labeling and expectations. Seventeen additional counties have
decided to initiate juvenile restitution programs under the new Youth and Family
Aids programs. In all Wisconsin now has over 30 formal programs.

Cost effectiveness

The average county cost per client in the juvenile restitution project is $623. This
compares to average annual cost of $22,000 for institutions, $14,900 for group home
care and $4,500 for foster care,

-STATEMENT OF DENNIS MALONEY, JUVENILE RESTITUTION

PROJECT MANAGER, DIVISION OF COMMUNITY SERVICES,
BUREAU FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES, MADISON,
WIS,

Mr. MavroNEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. -

I, too, would like to thank the committee for allowing the State
of Wisconsin to have an opportunity to provide some program
highlights. I have put together a statement. I would think I would
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prefer to stay away from that as much as possible and perhaps get
at the essence of the program. ‘

I have worked in the Wisconsin juvenile justice system for nearly
10 years, Wisconsin and Minnesota for two years during that time.

I have had a chance to witness the arrival and departure of
many trends. My current situation is that I am working with the
restitution project in the State.

What I would like to do is feed you some impacts about the
program, talk about some specific occurrences that are going on in
two of our counties and again pinpoint the essence of the program.

The Wisconsin program is administered by the Department of
Health and Social Services. We are currently operating in 12 juve-
nile court jurisdictions. The juvenile court jurisdictions range from
urban, suburban, rural to one tribal reservatiori, the Menominee
Indian tribe reservation in Wisconsin.

Our primary objectives are to hold the offenders accountable for
their acts, reduce the recidivism levels, insure compensation for the
victims of the offenses and improve the image of the system and
provide an effective means of treating juvenile offenders within the
community.

I think with the large scope of the program we are rather sparse-
ly staffed in that we have one central office manager, a central
office administrative assistant and a total of 14 staff in all 12
jurisdictions.

We benefit greatly from a training and technical assistance con-
tract with our university and a process and impact evaluation with
Carkhuff and Associates.

Due to the sparseness of the staffing across the State, we have to
rely heavily on the juvenile court systems. I recall when I was sent
out on a round-robin tour to meet with judges to explain why they
would be interested in starting a restitution project. I met with
approximately 25 judges and got very similar responses. They were
interested in starting a formal project, because oftentimes it ap-
peared that restitution sentences fell on deaf ears.

As a result of that, victims’ frustration levels were rising. The
community was showing great dissatisfaction with the power of the
court. Finally they mentioned they feared that the attitude about
the juvenile justice system hit the streets, and the kids were in fact
affected by that, too. The word had generally gotten out on the
streets that if you are ordered, go along if you like, but nobody is
going to follow through on it.

They were very interested in somebody providing formal fol-
lowthrough. We have received great cooperation with the judges.

Personally I try to work with the courts as closely as I can. Our
total budget is $450,000 including technical assistance and evalua-
tion costs.

The local projects range from $16,000 to $66,000.

As far as project highlights, we have had roughly 800 offenders
go through the program. The court ordered amount of restitution
surpassed $100,000. I am pleased to inform you we recently sur-
passed a major milestone: the kids themselves paid $103,000 in
restitution. They have had nearly 5,000 hours of community service
and 500 hours of victim service.
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Our successful completion rate is 85 percent. The majority of our
kids are serious property to very serious property offenders. Our
average number of priors is three. As far as reduction in incarcer-
ation, the State of Wisconsin is involved in a very assertive cam-
paign to serve juvenile offenders as effectively as possible within
the community while protecting the best interests of the public. We
have had a new children’s code come into effect, and the youth and
family aid programs that provide communities with the opportuni-
ty to develop local programs instead of having to send inappropri-
ate referrals to correctional facilities.

A question was asked, and I would like to inadvertently respond
to that. Are we diverting kids from juvenile facilities who would
need it? I would submit I do not think we are. We are getting down
to the more appropriate referral. We had a study done in our State
that discovered that for nearly half of the kids who ended up in the
correctional facilities, it was their first out-of-home placement
when supposedly many of the people in it were those who had
exhausted all other resources.

So, I think we are reaching a more appropriate population now.
With these two impetuses and the restitution program providing
the framework for the alternatives, the counties participating in
our program the year prior to the program had 242 kids placed in
corrections.

After the first year of the program, that amount was reduced
down to 148.

I would again submit that 148 are appropriate referrals to correc-
tional facilities, but that somebody in the community, hopefully the
restitution program in many instances, has reached many of the
kids who in fact did not need juvenile correctional facilities.

As far as systems impact, we have made a major commitment
again to community-based resources.

Our restitution programs have provided us the framework to
gear our juvenile justice system more toward a skilled-based ap-
proach than what I would term a subjective assessment, moral
questioning approach that involves utilizing dispositions that are
not very applicable to the youth currently or in the future.

In Wisconsin we started the restitution program with the OJJDP
fund. We have now started 18 additional programs with State
funding.

The youth and family aid program involves $14 million per year
of State money, non-Federal source money aimed at helping com-
munities to develop alternatives to corrections.

A question also was asked about, how does this compare with
alternative cost? Qur actual cost per client is $623. Our institution-
al costs in the State are $22,000. Group homes cost roughly $15,000
and foster care $4,500.

Just briefly I would like to touch on two counties in the State, to
give you a local perspective of what is going on. In Rock County
they have made a very powerful commitment to the program. The
judge there has in fact worked with nine kids who everybody in the
system had put together a blue slip on. What that means is you
would be waived to adult court and sent to an adult facility. Of
those ninc, the judge denied waiver over the kids and put them
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into the restitution program. To date, not one of the kids has either
ended up in an adult facility or juvenile facility.

In addition, they have had 17 who were petitioned to be placed in
juvenile facilities and who were allowed to remain in the communi-
ty -and successfully complete the restitution. The other county is
the Menominee Tribe court. The Menominee Indian Reservation is
our most active program. They have had 111 kids go through the
program and with this and other resources have been able to cut
their incarceration in half. Judge Louie Hoptos, who often shares
podiums with me at training sessions and statewide conferences,
has set a future goal to allow children to remain in the community
if at all possible.

They have a community board there that has worked since the
beginning of the program to supervise the staff of the program and
provide advice and input to how the kids are dealt with within the
program. They have examined community needs and designed a
program that meets those needs.

The Menominee tribal court works with kids and oftentimes
orders restitution for them to spend x amount of hours with elders
in the community, requiring or maintaining their homes to allow
the elderly people in the community to remain in their homes. The
kids are also involved in a large-scale energy program where they
chop wood or provide other energy-efficient services to elderly
homeowners to help them stay in their home in the community.

The essence of the program, again, concentrates on skills. I think
in the past much of our juvenile justice system was subjective. It
went from one culture to another. It was oftentimes sexist in that
female offenders were vuinerable for more serious reactions than
male offenders were for less serious crime. Oftentimes if you look
at dispositions in the past, they were incapable. They often state,
"Don’t hang with these kids. Don’t miss your curfew violations.
Don't miss school.”

Very often that type of disposition is inapplicable. Restitution is
goal oriented. Complete this by then, pick up these skills so you
can secure employment and make sure that you resolve the offense
with your victim. It is more goal oriented.

Also, in the past with the way we dealt with kids when restitu-
tion was not ordered was that the offense was unresolved. Victims
were angry. Communities were angry and oftentimes frustrated
with both the kids and the court system. Today when kids can
complete their restitution, that anger gets to be resolved and in
fact many of the victims in our State are actually providing work-
sites for the kids and in many instances act as the best references
for the kids.

As far as systems benefits, it is tangible. It is more realistic. Staff
can talk about, “I am working with a kid who is 75 percent on his
way to reaching his goal,” or 50 percent or whatever, rather than,
“I still have John or Mary for 4 more months of supervision.”

As far as community benefits, we have seen increased satisfac-
tion with the system. We have taken polls of opinion leaders and
victims, and there definitely is a growing trend with an increased
gmount of satisfaction with our juvenile justice system in the
State.
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In closing, I would just like to make one comment that perhaps
my colleagues could not have made. I really feel there is need for a
national impetus or conscience in this area. I think that Wisconsin
is achieving many positive changes in our juvenile justice system.
We have had the children’s code, the youth age, the restitution. If
you look at every one of those major initiatives going on in the
State, you will find the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention at the root. I am talking about more than just money.

As I mentioned, we are now pouring in $14 million of State
money into these initiatives. I fear that without the leadership we
will once again wander dangerously.

There is an old saying, if you don’t know where you are going,
any road will get you there.

I fear that if we lose the conscience and the impetus, that that is
what will happen in many of our local juvenile court jurisdictions.
The most obvious example in my mind is when the restitution
guidelines were announced I stood nose to nose with Doug Dodge,
or rather perhaps chin to forehead, and argued over the restric-
tions of the guidelines. I felt that they were asking us to work with
much too serious a probation, that chances of success would not be
possible. Dodge and OJJDP stood firm. We agreed to follow other
guidelines.

I can tell you this, if they had not stood firm, we would have
worked with a less serious population. We would not have achieved
the results I mentioned in reduction in incarceration and we might
in fact have widened the meaning if we were willing to work with
less serious offenders. We could have pulled more kids in the
system than need to be pulled in.

I thought in all due respect for the office and for the benefits we
have received in our State, I would like to mention that.

Thank you.

Mr. Corrapa. Thank you, Mr. Maloney, for your testimony.

Would you repeat for the record the average county cost per
client in the juvenile restitution project?

Mr. MaLoNEyY. It is $613, sir.

Mr. Corrana. What criteria are used in your program to select
juveniles for the restitution program?

Mr. MarongY. The first criteria is there has to be clearcut evi-
dence that in fact the juvenile did commit the offense. The second
criteria is that the youth be an adjudicated delinquent, and there
has been a factfinding or voluntary counsel plea of the offense. The
third criteria is they be more serious offenders. My feeling is kids
do not need a whole 9 yards of a system to pay off a $30 or $40
offense. fio we are trying to reach more serious offenders, and rule
one is the kids have to volunteer to partake in the program.

Mr. Corrapa. If the youth does not agree to the restitution
program, then other alternatives would be chosen?

Mr. MaLoNey. Yes. That does not mean it could not be court
ordered. The court will order it, but we put the question to the
kids. Is that what you choose to do?

Mr. Corrapa. What do the juvenile court judges in Wisconsin
think about the restitution program when you have had the occa-
sion of discussing this with them?

79-489 O0—81——3
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Mr. MaLonEy. I think quite frankly they are delighted. In some
of the counties they consider themselves project directors. We have

- a couple of councils where they still sign the form where it says
- project director. So they have taken on a lot of ownership in the

<=

program. Again, as I mentioned, we are achieving impacts with
community attitudes so they are beginning to sense their court
systems in better light, and in fact, when courts order a child, then
it means business. It is not a milktoast order.

Mr. Corrapa. Have you had any contacts with the victims in
terms of how they feel about this restitution program, and have
you been able to ascertain their attitude toward the program, vis-a-
vis a victim of juvenile delinquency who does not receive any kind
of restitution because the youngster goes on to some other way of
being punished?

Mr. MaLoweY. Yes, sir. Just briefly, there is a common attitude
we find in the State that victims feel it has gotten so bad they do
not expect restitution anymore. As soon as they hear the offender
was a juvenile, they say, “Well, it was a juvenile offense and I am
not going to get compensated.” It takes our court process an aver-
age of 120 days between offense and referral to the program, so
there is a high level of frustration that develops between the time
of the offense and the time victims first get a call from the restitu-
tion staff saying that the youth offender was referred to them.

So the results of the survey show that that frustration rises as
soon as they get an emphatic response from somebody in the
system saying, “We are going to work at resolving this offense,”
that the frustration begins to decline. In those cases that are
successfully completed, their attitudes toward the kid and the jus-
tice system increase again significantly.

So, it is like a rising and falling graph as far as their attitudes
and emotions. As far as the ones who are uncompensated, I am
sure they still remain frustrated.

Mr. CorrADA. Based on your experience, is there anything you
would like to do differently regarding your involvement in the
restitution program of the OJJDP? Any recommendations you may
have as to how could this be improved?

Mr. MaLoney. Well, T think the research we have seen both
through our program and some national studies that have been
carried on showed the best way to predict success with the program
is the personal level of skills of the staff because kids will only
approach those skill levels. If the staff are low skilled, then the
kids will also approach a low-skilled staff, meaning kids can

..become better or worse for having been involved in our program.

If I could have done anything better with the program, I would
have liked to have seen through OJJDP that skill training and a
real emphasis on programmatic skills be offered to our project staff
rather than having to necessarily go through the grant guideline
management and that type of thing; not that we have not gotten it,
but I think skill training is the kind of thing you just cannot get
enough of. So I would have asked for more of that.

Mr. CorrapA. Based on your experience, and if you were to
assign a restitution program that would be effective, how would
you do it?
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Mr. MaLoNEY. I would locate as closely to the court as possible,
because I think there is the air of authority that comes with the
court that is very difficult to maintain when you get outside the
parameters of the court. I think it is important for both the child
and the parent to know that there is an obligation, and it will be
fulfilled by one means or another. That is the first thing I would
do.

Second, I would concentrate more on objective assessment of the
kids, basically what are their living, learning, and working skills
currently, and where do they need skills in order to fulfill this
restitution obligation.

Once the obligation has become completed, then I would like to
see a systems reenforcement of the kids, reenforcing kids for
having successfully completed the restitution program and even
acting perhaps as a reference for future employment of the young-
ster.

The outcome is to have a permanent employment meaning we
have sent them on. They. have completed their obligation. They
have compensated their victim. They have got a positive label
rather than a negative one, and we can send them on the way with
employment and skills they need to stay away from further crime.

Mr. Corrapa. The Chair will now recognize Mr. Williams for
questions of this witness.

Mr. Wirriams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Maloney, do you use both monetary restitution and commu-
nity service and direct service to the victims?

Mr. MALONEY. Yes.

Mr. WiLLiams. Which is most common?

Mr. MaLoNEY. Monetary.

Mr. WiLriams. Do you set up the procedures by which the person
raises the money?

Mr. MALONEY. You mean the young person?

Mr. WiLLiams. Yes.

Mr. MaLoNEY. Yes; they are provided, first of all, with training
on the job seeking skills on how to secure employment.

If at all vossible, our highest priority is unsubsidized employ-
ment. They are coached on how to secure that employment and
given time to do that. If they are not able to secure that employ-
ment, then we will assist them in some means with a subsidization.
In the private sector we subsidize up to 50 percent to the private
business sector, not a written commitment with the hope that the
private business sector will maintain employment of the youth
after they have completed the restitution.

Mr. WirLiamMs. Is there money in the program to provide for the
subsidization?

Mr. Marongy. Yes.

Mr. WiLLiams. You do not have to go outside to a CETA program
or some such program?

Mr. MavLonEeY. No; although whenever CETA is possible we will
plug into them as much as possible, because the CETA program
has gotten to the stage where they not only offer job employment,
but job training and job skills, working skills. I think that is an
optimum way to go.
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Mr. WizLiams. Did I understand that in working with the Indian
young people on or near the reservation—what reservation is that?

Mr. MaronNEy. Menominee Tribe Reservation.

Mr. WiLLiams. That the incarceration rate has been cut in half?

Mr. MALONEY. Yes.

Mr. WiLLiams. But you indicated that those young people who
should be institutionalized are institutionalized rather than
brought into this program?

Mr. MaLoNEY. Right.

Mr. WicLiams. Dees that tell us that previous to this program
half of the people on that reservation that were being incarcerated
should not have been?

Mr. Maroney. I will be candid. I will say that that is true.

Mr. WiLriams. How much does it cost again to incarcerate a
young person?

\/’ Mr. MaLoNEY. $22,000.

Mr. WiLLiams. Do you know how many young people in a year—
how many Indian young people off this reservation are placed in a
juvenile detention facility?

Mr. MALONEY. Yes.

Mr. WiLriams. How many?

Mr. MaLoNEY. Currently before the program, 23 were placed.
After the initial program it was down to 14. One thing I want to
clarify is Judge Hopatos has got a general philosophy of keeping
the kids on the reservation as much as possible. We are one of the
resources he uses. When he has used the podium he has said quite
frankly they do not have a lot of resources on the reservation. They
have relied heavily on the restitution program to provide them
with one of their key resources for keeping kids in the community.

One of the things we are working on with them currently is a
youth planning management and employment corporation whereby
the kid will be able to use the waste products from the timber
industry which is the largest industry on the reservation, to pro-
vide a product, because his concern was that with employment as
bleak as it is on the reservation, restitution is one of the only
means to get the type of job training and skills that we offer and
meaningful employment.

The current plan on which Judge Hopatos is working very ag-
gressively is to develop a corporation, a private business operation,
where the kids actually act in management and employment capac-
ities so that you do not have to necessarily get into trouble to have
a decent job on the reservation.

Mr. WiLriaMms. The judge has obviously tried to find other ways
than institutionalization to deal with crime and yet you indicate
frankly that perhaps half of those who are sent to juvenile facili-
ties in the past ought not have been so sent.

Mr. MaLonegy. Right. I would be willitig to make that statement,
sir. I have had a chance to meet many of the kids, not only on the
reservation, but in the Rock County program, kids who were defi-
nitely scheduled to go on and sit in adult facilities where they
would have been vulnerable for increased chance of suicide, sexual
assault, and all the other nasty things I think can happen to 16-
and 17-year-old kids in those kinds of institutions, that those kids
who made it have in many ways demonstrated they did not need
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those facilities, that they needed an opportunity to demonstrate
that they could make it in the community.

I would like to think that in many cases the restitution can
provide both the opportunity and the skills they need to remain
within the community.

Mr. WinLiamMs. In Wisconsin was there a juvenile restitution
project, or was this procedure being utilized previous to the enact-
ment of this act?

Mr. MaronEy. We had four or five formal restitution programs
in the State before the initiative. As I mentioned, now we have
surpassed 30 in the State. Judge Calla, who is on our supreme
court, started one of the first restitution programs in Wakashaw
County, and many of the programs have been modeled after his
project.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Corrapa. We will now recognize staff on behalf of the rank-
ing minority member to ask guestions, if any.

Mr. DEan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I just have a couple of questions.

On page 2 of your statement, you mentioned that OJJDP has
designed the restitution initiative to work with serious: juvenile
offenders in threat of incarceration. You mentioned that one of the
criteria for identifying those juveniles to go into the project is that
they volunteer for it, and I wonder whether they really have a
choice, given that the alternative may be placement in a sscure
facility.

Mr. MaroNEY. Well, my response would be that in our State, in
our children’s code, if the youth is defined and first of all he did
not commit the act, he is entitled to a factfinding here. Second, if
he is arguing about the amount of responsibility, because if we are
having one problem with the projects, oftentimes victims inflate
their loss and they can have an offense and all of a sudden losses
for the last 4 years will end up on that loss list, that if a juvenile is
really arguing about that amount, by law he is entitled to another
hearing.

So our feeling is if the juvenile who is supposed to be coming on
the program is saying that I did not commit the offense, or second,
I did commit it but I am responsible for $100, not $2,000 of the loss,
and I refuse to participate in the program, then we will not accept
that referral, because you are taking on a kid for whom there is a
greater increase that he is going to defy whatever is offered to him
and is most likely going to fail within the program.

Mr. DeEaN. You mentioned that some of your program partici-
pants went into CETA positions. In terms of your overall oper-
ations, did you tap into any other sources of Federal funds other
than the juvenile justice money and, I guess, indirectly the CETA
moneys?

Mr. MaLongy. Currently we are working with the ACTION
office. The ACTION office has developed a program where retired
citizen volunteers are provided with resources to supervise young
people, and we are going to attempt to develop a program in the
State where we will have the unique expertise of retired business-
men working as job coaches and parent relationships with the kids.
That is the one Federal program that comes to my mind.
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Mr. Dean. I guess another'question would be the number of
offenses of the program participants, whether the rates of comple-
" tion of restitution vary with the seriousness of offense to the point
that- it would be very low for, say, a serious personal offense in
coritrast with the ones with minor victimless offenses.

Mr. MaLongy. Our evaluation with the Carkhuff firm and it
surprised me too, because I thought the more serious the offense
the less likelihood of success. We found that seriousness level is not
an indicator of successful completion of a program.

Mr. DeEaN. On page 3 of your statement you mentioned that the
pevcentage of youth who have committed subsequent offenses
daring project participation is 7.3l percent. I was wondering what
the nature of those offenses are, and if you could characterize it?

Mr. MarongeY. The highest number of reoffense within the pro-
gram is burglary. That is the majority of crimes committed while
still within the program is burglary.

Mr. DEaN. From that can I gather that they are not committing
offenses actually on the restitution program that they are working
on, stealing from their employer.

Mr. MarongY. I do not believe so. We have had occurrences
where kids have gotten involved in offenses on the worksite, but I
don’t think it is to a great degree. I don't see any data that has
surpassed that that is to a great degree. .

Mr. Dean. I just have a couple more questions. Do any of th
funds that are generated by the work in the restitution projects
actually go back to the project to defray administrative costs?

Mr. MavonEey. No.

Mr. Dean. And in the case of, say, a budgetary crunch would
that be a feasible alternative to require 5 percent to defray those
administrative costs.

Mr. MaLoNEY. We are looking into that possibility. We are look-
ing into several possibilities. We do have the youth and family aid
programs that provide localities with State funds to start these
types of initiative. So we are looking most closely at the youth aids
initiative. Other than that we are beginning to examine, as you
mentioned, the possibility of administrative overhead falling back
into the program.

Mr. DEAN. My final question here would just be an open ended
one. Could you give a few examples of the jobs that the juveniles
are placed in; whether they are the kinds of jobs that have a
future; and whether they are of deadend nature?

Mr. MarLoNEY. Our priority is meaningful employment. Meaning-
ful employment means that it falls within the pricrities of the
young person himself and it does offer future employment, at least
the hope for future employment. We have had some unique em-
ployment situations. For instance, a young person in Rock County
who was under threat of incarceration was doing remodeling work
with the Rock County Historical Society. After completing his resti-
tution, for instance, the Historical Society was so pleased with the
youngster they actually made him a formal member of the Rock
County Historical Society.

In the Menominee Reservation, a group of kids in the program
assumed responsibility for the design, planning and carrying out of
an entire pow-wow for the community where several hundred
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people attended. They had to assume responsibility for all of the
financial management, the arrangement of speakers, the arrange-
‘ment of events. So I think that type of planning skill came out in
the restitution and employment opportunity, although it was not a
future employment opportunity.

Mr. DEaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Corrapa. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Maloney, for your excellent presentation to this
subcommittee and sharing with us your experience in Wisconsin
with this program. ,

Mr. MavroNEY. Thank you for having us.

Mr. CorraDa. We will now go to a panel of youngsters, two of
them from Wisconsin, two of them from Washington, D.C., that
have actually participated in the restitution program.

In order to protect the privacy of these youngsters, I will ask all
the members of the subcommittee to address them by their first
name and no photographs will be allowed of these witnesses during
their testimony.

Before we call them for their testimony, I would like to state
that T am very pleased to have today the visit of a group of
youngsters from Puerto Rico who are participating in the Presiden-
tial classroom program here in Washington. I would like to ask the
youngsters from Puerto Rico, who are participating in the Presi-
dential classroom program to please stand up.

It is quite coincidental that while these high school students
from Puerto Rico come to Washington for the Presidential class-
room program and to visit their Congresspersons today, we are
holding these hearings precisely on a problem that is of great
importance to the whole Nation and, of course, to the Common-
wealth of Puerto Rico as well, dealing with juvenile justice and
delinquency prevention.

We will now have the opportunity of asking questions of young-
sters who have participated in this restitution program, a program
that is geared toward having the youngster restitute or pay direct-
ly to the victim and to society for faults that have been committed
rather than sending them to jail or placing them in the regular
probation program:.

We will agk now Charles and Becky, coming from Wisconsin, and
Jeff and Jonathan from Washington, D.C., to please come forward.
Take a seat at the witness table.

I would like to welcome the four of you to this hearing today and
express to each of you the great appreciation of this subcommittee
for your appearing before us today and allowing us to gain more
information about the program in which you have been participat-
ing and what that program has meant to you.

Definitely your cooperation with this hearing will allow us to
gain information that will be very valuable in examining how this
project has worked and in determining what this subcommittee
should do in encouraging programs of this nature.

The witnesses do not have prepared testimony. They will respond
to questions from the members of the subcommittee.
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STATEMENT OF CHARLES AND BECKY, WISCONSIN, AND JEFF
o AND JONATHAN, WASHINGTON, D.C.

.. Mr. CorraDA. I would like to ask Charles here to please tell us in
what manner or form do you believe that being in this restitution
program has helped you in becoming an individual who can better
cope with the society and the group where you live?

CuarLes. Well, OK. After I had committed the offense I had
heard people talking. They didn’t want their kids to be around me

[ because, you know, in fear that I would get them in trouble. It gave

me a chance to show that if given a chance I could be just like
. anyone else.

I am not one that was out looking for trouble. I just happened to
run upon it at that time. It showed to myself that I could be
- anything that I wanted to be. It depended on what I wanted to

make of myself. So really, it proved to the people around me that I
could make it in the world today, not as an inmate in a prison, you
know, but going to work every day, bringing home a paycheck.

Mr. Corrapa. In what sense do you believe that a restitution
program such as this one should be encouraged in terms of how

 other youngsters that may find themselves in the situation you
found yourself, may use the program itseif as a way to become
better members of society?

CuarLes. Well, like with the job you get, you can obtain skills,
say, like if you liked it, you could further yourself in that particu-
lar thing. It gave me a chance to meet different people and talk
with them, to see their ideas and viewpoints and really, I don’t
know. You have to ask others.

Mr. CorraDpA. Becky, how would you answer that question?

Becky. Could you repeat it?

Mr. Corrava. In what sense do you believe that having partici-
pated in the restitution program would help you and other young-
sters similarly situated in being able to recuperate from the situa-
tion in which you found yourself?

Becky. OK. I am not sure if I understand the question real good,
but for myself I got a good recommendation from that job. And I
use it for everyone. They have called that job site every time and
they said that they gave me an excellent recommendation.

OK, being 15 when I committed a crime, there is no way I would
have been able to pay off the debt that I had to pay. Who is going
to hire a 15-year-old, especially one who is, you know, in trouble?

. 'OK. So it helped me get the job. It showed me that I can do it. It
gave me some skills to help out in future jobs. It was really the
first job besides babysitting I had had, and it showed me what job
supervisors are like, what interviews are like. It wasn’t a real
formal interview.

" There is no way I would have been able to pay back the money
that I owed without getting this job. And really being on social
security there is no way that my mother would have been able to
pay for it either. ,

Mr. Corrapa. What kind of job did you get?

Becky. I worked at the YWCA. It was only cleaning and paint-
ing. T also had to put in 50 hours of volunteer work. I did secretari-
al work at the Boys Club in Green Bay.
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Mr. CorraDA. Jeff, how would you say that this program helped
you?

JErF. Well, as long as I can remember I have been getting in
trouble with the juvenile courts, you know. The juvenile restitution
program opened up a lot of things for me. You can get in the

_program and learn a skill and learn how to turn your life around

from what you have been doing to being a better person. You have
got to put it in your mind that you want to be better.

The program offers you different opportunities and different
skills, you know. It has helped me a lot.

Mr. CorraDA. How old are you now?

JEFF. I am 18 going on 19.

Mr. CorranA. How old were you when you participated or start-
ed your participation in the restitution program?

JEFF. I was 17.

Mr. Corrapa. They worked out the program for you. What is it
that you did in the program?

JEFF. Well, T had a choice, you know. I had a choice to be in this
program. I wasn’t sure I could make it in the program. That is up
to the judge. They gave me a choice. I could go in the program, pay
back $600 restitution and do 175 hours community service or either
do 4 years, you know, whatever the jail term would have been.

Mr. Corrapa. Why did you choose this program?

JEFF. Because it showed me—I saw something that was going to
help me better my life. I got tired of being in trouble all my life, so
I decided to try to better myself and this was just an opportunity to
help me better myself, you know, start my life over and do better
things.

Mr. Corrapa. What did you do to repay the $600?

JeFF. I worked at the Columbia Heights Youth Club in a pro-
gram and went around fixing up parks, putting in benches, and
fixing things like that. The paychecks from there helped me pay
back the restitution.

Mr. CorrADA. In what sense do you think this helped you?

JEFF. It helped me to rehabilitate myself in a way. Ever since I
have been in this program, the people in the program have been
helping me find jobs and just do things I have never had time to do
before because 1 was on the street getting in trouble all the time.

Mr. Corrapa. Without the program do you think you would have
been able to repay that $600?

JEFF. No, sir.

Mr. CorraDA. Jonathan, how has this program helped you?

JONATHAN. The program has helped me because in about 1978 I
had dropped out of school, started getting in trouble.

Then once I went to court, the judge told me I had an opportuni-
ty to get in the juvenile restitution program or be committed to
jail. I had benefit to look at the program to see how the ideas and
how they were going about things. So I decided to go into the
juvenile center. Then I started realizing that I can’t be out on the
street at certain hours of the night doing crime when I know I
have to pay for them. I started to look at my life as a better
perspective, so then once I had got in the program, I started
working in a warehouse for the city that helped evict the people,
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pick up their furniture and store it for them if they can’t afford to
pay a moving company or something like that.

So then I did my community service and then after my communi-
ty service were over they hired me to work with them.

So I feel that the juvenile restitution center helps a whole lot of
people if they want to help themselves.

- Mr. CorraDA. Thank you, Jonathan.

I will yield now to Congressman Williams.

- Mr. WiLriams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Jeff, what do your friends think of this program?

JeFF. Well, you know, my friends they like the program if they
could get into it, you know, the ones that are mcarcerated now.

Mr. WiLLIAMS. What do they say about it?

Jerr. Well, it gives you a chance, you know, to start all over,
turn your life around.

- Mr. WiLLiaMms. Jeff, how many of your friends have said to you,
“I like this program because it gives you a chance to start all over
and turn my life around.” You tell us the way they tell you.

Let me lead you a little bit more. Do they say, “Boy. that is a
free ride. I wish I could get into that instead of going to jail,” What
do they think of this program?

JEFF. Well, naturally they like it instead of going to jail because
don’t too many people want to be locked up, you know. They would
rather be in this program: than go to jail because they say, like you
say, it is a free ride for them doing something and not having to
pay for it, but in the sense they are paying for it anyway because
they have to pay back to the victim, you know, and do community
service.

Mr. Witriams. Now that you have gone through the program,
and apparently you are a supporter of the program, you think it
was a pretty good idea. Maybe it was a pretty good idea, because
you did not have to be staring out of bars or maybe you think it
was pretty good idea because you did get something really paid
back in a real way with money to whomever, or whatever you had
harmed with whatever you did.

Now you know maybe that part of it means something to yon,
too. Have you talked about that part of this program with your
friends, the part other than the free ride?

JEFF. Paying the people, you talking about the——

Mr. WiLLiams. The good that you did about paying them back,
have you and your friends discussed that part?

JEFF. No, sir.

Mr. WiLriams. You have talked about the free ride some, though.

JEFF. 1 felt that it was nice for them to let me stay on the street
and find me a job so I could pay these people back, you know. It
was nice of the people to offer to let me pay them back instead of
gettl}lllg me locked up for what I had done. I don’t talk about it too
muc

Mr. WiLriams. I appreciate your being honest with me and with
the committee on that, Jeff.

Jonathan, do you have any friends who have been in trouble,
fairly serious trouble with the law? :
-JoNATHAN. Yes.
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Mr. Wicniams. Do you have any of those friends that you think
ought to be in jail instead of in this restitution program? You know
if you were the judge knowing what you know about some of your
friends, would you say if you were the judge and you knew the
accused “No, this restitution program is not going to work for this
cat. He has got to go to jail,” or could most or all of your friends
that might commit a crime benefit from this program?

JoNaTHAN. Well, I think all of them would benefit from this
‘program, because one, it would put them in the right direction and
for another, you know, they realize what is really going on around
them and out there in reality. So, you know, it would make them
respect their self and others, put them in a perspective which they
will understand what the court system is about and how the juve-
nile restitution is helping them.

Mr. Wiriams. Charles, where do you live?

CHARLES. Beloit, Wis.

Mr. Wirtams. What street do you live on?

CHARrLES. Copeland.

Mr. WiLriams. When you look out the window—do you live in an
apartment or house?

CuarLEs. House.

Mr. WiLLiams. When you look out the window of your house
what do you see, the view out of your window?

CHARLES. Another house.

Mr. WiLLiams. Are all the houses close on your street?

CHARLES. Yes.

Mr., WiLLiaMs. Are any of the friends that live in that house or
the house next to it or the house on the other side, in trouble?

CHARLES. No.

Mr. Wirriams. Are you the only one in your neighborhood that
has been in trouble?

CHARLES. As far as I know.

Mr. WiLLiams. Your friends you go to school with, Charles, have
been in trouble?

CHARLES. I am sure some of them have.

Mr. WiLrLiams. I mean people you pal around with that you know
Igiay?e been in trouble and you talked to them about being in trou-

Y

CHARLES. A few.

Mr. Wirniams. What do they think about this program?

CHARLES. I have never discussed it with anyone.

Mr. Wirriams. Your friends know you have been in trouble?

CHARLES. Yes.

Mr. WiLLiams. They have not asked you about this program?

CHARLES. No.

Mr. WinLiams. Becky, you mentioned that you seem to support
the program on the basis that it allowed you to get a job when it is
difficult for a person your age to find work and moreover, you
apparently did a pretty good job where you were employed because
those people have been able to recommend you to others. You said
it gave you some job skills and you saw what an interview was all
about. A couple of you mentioned that.

You know there are many programs in this country that help
you get a job and you can get interview skills. But this one is a
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little different. This one says we are going to give you a job instead
of having you go to jail.

So set aside for me all of those other things that you said about
why you liked this program. That is you got a job and it gave you
skills, because we have got other programs to do those things. Set
that aside and tell me what else it is about the restitution program
that you think is worthwhile. Anything else?

Becky. I have to think about it.

Mr. WiLLiams. While you are thinking about that, let me ask you
a question and maybe it will help you.

The alternative perhaps in your case, the alternative might have
been to go to jail.

Becky. Right.

Mr. WirLiams. What about this program compared with going to
jail? Do you like it for that reason?

Becky. Oh, sure. Of course. Who wouldn’ t? But even if I wasn't
going to jail I would still do it anyway. I most definitely would.
Even right now if I could, I would do it.

Mr. WiLLiams. Now, if any of you wants to answer this question
just put up your hand.

I think everybody, all four of you, agree that there is one reason
this program is good and that is because it keeps you out of jail.
Right? Now, society has an idea that—at least many, many people
in society have an idea—that if jail is tough enough and if the
times are hard enough when you are in jail, by gosh, when you get
out you won’t commit a crime anymore.

Becky. They are doing it by threatening——

Mr. WiLLiams. They are what?

Becky. When you go through the restitution project, you learn
something, but when the other alternative is being locked up, what
aredyou going to learn? You are just going to be threatened to be
good.

Mr. WiLLiams. That won'’t stop you from committing another
crime?

Becky. I am not saying that it won’t, but you are being threat-
ened. You are not learning a thing. In the restitution program at
least you are learning stuff through it.

Mr. WiLLiams Charles?

CHARLES. I don’t know how true it is, but I have often heard that,
say, you go to prison for robbery or burglary, once you get there,
you would most likely learn how to do it and get away with it the
next time. I mean that is what has been told to me by some people
that have went to prison. That it is more or less a school for
learning how to do a crime and get away with it.

Mr. WiLLiams. If the situation presented itself again, as it prob-
ably has with some of you, presented itself again, and you thought
it is a situation where you might commit another crime, maybe
you are with some friends and we all know they are involved and
S0 you say, oh, well, was this restitution program that you have
been through or going through, was it difficult enough on you or
good enough for you or something that you would say, no, no, I am
. not going to commit that crime and the reason you would think in
your head I am not going to commit it is because you had been in
this restitution program? Because I got a feeling if you had been in
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jail and you came up against the possibility of this new crime, you
would say no, I am not going back to jail.

JEFE. I have been incarcerated a couple of times, you know. For
some people it takes, you know—they need to be locked up at least
once to see how it is, you know, for some people. But for some
people the restitution program is a very good idea. It stopped them
from going so far, going as far as I did, but I think it would help a
lot of people. For some people, they ought to try it and see how it
is.

Like you say, once they get down there, they have such a bad
time they don’t want to come back when they get out. The restitu-
tion program is a nice program.

Mr. WiLriams. Charles.

CuARLES. But if you go once, what would make you go back
again? He said he had went a couple of times. He went there one
time, but he also went again.

Mr. Wirriams. Jeff, Charles said you went once and you went
back again. It apparently was not so tough it kept you out.

JeFF. Well, it takes some people longer than others to really find
out what is happening or what is going to happen. It just took me a
little longer than other, you know,; to find out how I was messing
up my life and to straighten up.

Mr. WinLiams. Maybe in your schools they use this system of
grading, A, B, C, D, and F. You all know about that system, don’t
you? A is tops and F is failure. OK.

I want you, starting with Charles and going down the line to
grade this program for me and I want you to grade it on just one
part and that is whether you think it will make you think a long
time before you commit another crime. A means this program was
so good and I learned so much and I found out so much about what
I did to hurt people on it, or it was so hard to get the money back, I
am never going to commit a crime again. That would be A.

F would be, no, it was just a free ride and I would do it again. If
the time came up and I got helpless, I would do it again.

Write it for me from A to F.

CHARLES. A.

Mr. WiLLiams. Becky.

Becky. I would give it a B.

Mr. WiLLiams. Jeff,

JEFF. I would give it a B.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Jonathan.

JONATHAN. A.

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. CorraDA. Thank you.

Before going to the staff on the minority side, let me say this. Of
course, when people commit a crime we have devised a system
called the criminal justice system to make those who have commit-
ted a crime pay for that crime. That is essentially the concept of
restitution. If someone broke the law, then that person has to pay
back to society. There must be restitution to society in general,
restitution to the victim of that crime as a member of society.

We for a number of years and centuries have thought that

" perhaps the only way or the best way that we are going to provide
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restitution is by placing that person in jail. Jailing people is only a
way to provide for restitution for paying back society.

And, of course, a second objective in this criminal concept of
making people pay for their crimes is rehabilitation. See how this
person is subjected to a process that will result in making that
person a better individual who will be able then to go back to
society and participate fully in society without getting involved in
problems.

There are some who would say that anybody who committed a
crime ought to go to jail and that is it.

There are others who believe that there are different options to
be considered, that jail or incarceration is one option. Probation is
- another option. Sending a person to a foster home or any other
kind of facility is another option and that there is an option called
restitution in this narrow sense which means allowing the person
who committed the crime to do something more directly in restitut-
ing to society or paying back to society for that crime which is by
paying, by making some kind of monetary compensation back to
the victim who was involved.

Obviously, if you are a poor person or a person with limited
resources, there is no way you can pay back to the vietim what you
owe them. If you don’t have any money to begin with if you don’t
have a job, if you don’t have the opportunity of paying back or
making this restitution.

Now, in this context, let me ask you, the four of you, do you
believe you would have been able to pay back any money or com-
pensation to the victims in your cases had you not been afforded
the opportunity of this program?

JONATHAN. No.

JEFF. No, sir.

Becky. No way.

CHARLES. No. .

Mr. Corrapa. Now let me ask you a second question. The fac
that you were allowed to compensate, to pay back to the victims,
did this mean anything to you in terms of something that you
wanted to do because it made you feel better, did it mean anything
in terms of your own personal dignity, or not, having that opportu-
nity to pay back to the victim?

JONATHAN. I felt better after I did it because then I felt like I
had done my service for what I done did and it was to be repaid.

So, you know, I felt a whole lot better, especially when I had got
on the program because it really helped to learn and let others,
you know, show you the way that you might never thought you
could see until you reaize there is a way to go and there is a way
not to go.

Mr. Corrapa. How about you, Jeff?

JEFF. I felt better after I paid the people back, you know. I felt
that I didn’t owe no one. I had paid back for what I had done to
them. I paid them back. I felt that I no longer owed them anything.
Sptit was a clean break. I paid them back and I helped the commu-
nity. .

Mr. Corrapa. Becky?

Becky. After completing it you feel good about doing it, but
before, definitely having to dominates, definitely.
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Mr. CorrADA. Charles?

_ Cuarwres. I would have to go along with Jeff. I paid some back, so
I paid my debt, but you know that doesn’t mean that they owe me
something, you know. I done what I was supposed to do and what
was expected of me.

- Mr. CorrapA. Let me ask you. I understand that you were pro-
vided with a job, but then from the moneys that you earned by
doing that. job you paid the victims out of your accounts. Is that
correct?

Brecky. Yes.

JEFF. Yes.

CuaRLEs. Yes.

JONATHAN. Yes.

Mr. Corrapa. You took money that was paid to you from the
work you did and gave that money to the victim? Is that correct?

JEFF. Yes.

Becky. The check went directly to the victim. I didn't see any of
it at all. I didn’t get to give it to the victim myself.

Mr. CorraDA. But you agreed to that arrangement.

Becky. You have to. That is it.

Mr. CorrapA. What difference does it make for you to have the
opportunity of having a job and taking money from what you
received as compensation and paying the victims rather than put-
ting the money in your pocket as you would have if instead of
being in this program you had been on probation and gotten a job?

Did it mean anything to you, the fact that there was this provi-
sion in your program that you could do that, rather than getting a
job, let’s say, being on probation and getting a job and not having
to pay back?

JEFF. Well, my choice was—this program was the only thing that
was helpful to me at the time because other than the program I
had incarceration looking at me. That is what I knew. If I wouldn't
have decided to get in the program, I would have been incarcerated
for a certain amount of years.

Mr. Corrapa. Do you have now a better idea what it cost to
make $600 than you had when you did whatever you did to your
victim, that that person lost $600?

JEFF. The victim who I—they lost much more than $600. That is
just what a juvenile at that time would pay back, the highest in a
restitution program that a juvenile could return. They settled for
that $600.

So every time I got paid I took a certain amount out of my check,
got a money order and sent it to the victim, gave it to them and
they sent it to the victim.

Mr. CorrapaA. I will yield now to the counsel for the minority.

Mr. Dean. Jeff, if I could follow up on Mr. Corrada’s question.
After you had deducted the amount to pay to the victim, how much
money did you have left from your paycheck?

JEFF. I had a choice. I could have only—all I was told to give
them was 20 percent of each check, but 1 took it upon myself to
give them 50 percent of the check so I could pay them off sooner,
iou know, and keep the job and just have the rest for myself, you

now.
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Mr. Dean. Did you find that after you had begun this job you
had more money in your pocket than you had before you had a job?
Were you making more on the street than you were on this job? Or
was it about the same?

Jerr. I felt better working for a living than taking it, you know.

Mr. DeaN. Before you got into trouble, were you in school?

JEFF. Yes, I was in school.

Mr. DEaN. In school, were you in a vocational education. pro-
gram?

JEFF. No. I was pretty smart when I was in school.

Mr. Dean. But in school were you getting any training that was
kind of oriented toward helping you get a job?

JEFF. No, sir.

Mr. DEaN. Since you have been in the project have they referred
you to any sort of training to help you get a better job than you
were already qualified for?

JEFF. Yes, sir. Since I have been in this program I have picked
up two or three skills.

Mr. DEan. What are those skills?

I JEFF. I can brick lay. I can paint, or I can lay cement, whichever
want.

Mr. DEAN. Are you working now? Do you have a job?

JEFF. Not at the moment, no.

Mr. Dean. The last job that you had, did your employer know
that you had been in this project?

JEFF. Yes, sir, he did.

Mr. DEeaN. Jonathan, did you pay money back to the victim?

JONATHAN. I did community service. I did about 40 community
service hours over what I was supposed to do. And I paid a little
each way.

Mr. Dean. Did they pay you for that time in community service?
And did they give you money for it?

JONATHAN, Who?

Mr. DEaN. When you were working in community service, did
you just put in the time or did you actually get paid for working in
the community?

JonaTHAN. Put in the time. Then I got placed on the community
service job. Then after I did my community service, then they hired
me. Then that is when I took a little.

Mr. DeaN. But they hired you because they had seen your work
and they liked it?

JoNATHAN. Yes.

Mr. DEAN. So your being hired was unrelated to this program? It
wasn’t part of this program?

JONATHAN. The program helped me get it, you know. You could
say it is related.

Mr. DEaN. Have you received any kind of training from partici-
pation in the restitution project other than that that you picked up
working the community service? Did they, for instance, have some-
body teach you how to lay bricks or anything of that nature?

JONATHAN. No.

Mr. DeaAN. That is all. Thank you.

Mr. Corraba. Do you have any further questions?

Mr. WiLLiams. I have another question.
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Are any of you now in the restitution program currently?

CHARLES. No.

Becky. No.

" JEFF. No.

JONATHAN. No.

Mr. WiLLiams. Are any of you still holding the job that you held
in the restitution program?

JEFF. The job they gave me when I got in the restitution pro-
gram, it only lasted for a year and the year is up. That is why I am
unemployed right now.

Mr. WiLLiams. Charles, are you working?

CHARLES. No.

Mr. WiLLiams. Becky?

Becky. Yes.

Mr. WiLLiams. Jeff, you said you weren't working previously,
correct?

JEFF. Right.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Jonathan?

JoNaTHAN. No.

Mr. WirLiams. How many jobs, Jonathan, have you held since
the job you had in the restitution program?

JONATHAN. Since the job? Two.

Mr. WiLLiamMs. You have worked two different places since then?

JoNATHAN. Yes.

Mr. WirLiams. How about you, Jeff?

JEFF. Ever since I came in the program, that was about 2 years
ago, I have only had two jobs.

Mr. WiLLiams. Becky?

Becky. Two jobs.

Mr. WiLLiams. How long have you had your current job, Becky?

Becky. Since last July.

Mr. WiLLiams. Charles?

CHARLES. Two jobs.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Chairman, I suggest that we guard against
what could be happening here and it is something that happens in
other programs of this type that don’t have to do with court cases
and violations of the law and retribution, but rather that is this
revolving door of Government jobs that people seem to continue.

I used to be involved with a training and job placement program
and we found that inadvertently once we started people into that
job system where the Federal Government, the State government
got them a job, they seemed to just revolve through four or five
jobs and never able to hold a permanent one.

I would be interested when the administrators of this program
send us the additional material, which they are going to do, I
would be interested in having some additional thoughts from them
with regard to follow-on and placement in permanent or as near
permanent as possible jobs for the people coming out of this pro-
gram.

Mr. CorrADA. I share in the concerns of Mr. Williams.

I think it would be desirable if in submitting further information
to the subcommittee, you would furnish information as to what
efforts, if any, in terms of coordination have been done or might be
done in the future with other agencies in terms of obtaining jobs in

| 79-48 O—8l—4
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the private sector for youngsters who have held jobs in this pro-
gram and might need a job when they finish their restitution
program.

I will ask the four of you to comment on this.

Let us assume that all of a sudden the opportunity, the chance or
option, of paying for whatever a youngster may do through a
restitution program like the one you went through was ended, that
this was no longer an option. That youngsters, not you, because
you have gone through the program successfully, you are out of the
program now, but that other youngsters who live in your neighbor-
hood or who may have the same experiences that you have had,
had a problem and they were denied the opportunity of going
through a restitution program, and only the other alternatives,
incarceration or probation and so on are left.

I would like your comments individually on whether you believe
that stopping a program of this nature or not allowing that oppor-
tunity. In what sense do you believe that would make other young-
sters better or limit the opportunities to them in improving in
their own conduct.

Jonathan?

JONATHAN. I feel that you catch them while they are young, you
can avoid, you know, them going through anything like this, espe-
cially at the age of 11, 12, you know, that is when crime usually
most starts with younger kids. I feel that juvenile restitution pro-
gram can benefit to them which some other programs like they
couldn’t even get in. It is certain programs in the community that
really look out toward each other and want to help each other. It is
an environment that has been growing constantly. I feel the juve-
nile restitution program should have more help, should be involved
with more community actions, which already they is, but I feel
that it should be more of all this.

So it would cut down burglaries and crime rate in your commu-
nity more and more.

Mr. CorrADA. Jeff?

JEFF. Well, I feel that this program shouldn’t be cut out because
it gives hope to lots of juveniles who feel that all they can do is
resort to a life of crime because they have nothing else to re:ort to,
no skills, no nothing. All they know how to do is get out and take
or rob or whatever they do, you know. Cutting out this program
ain’t going to help.

Mr. CorraDpA. You said before that you have been twice incarcer-
ated and also that you went through this program. What did you
learn from this program that you did not learn from incarceration?

JEFF. I didn’t find out about the program until the second time
that I was incarcerated. Since I have been in this program, I have
learned different skills and how to be trusted. People pin a label on
you when you are small. People tell you all you know how to do is
steal, that is all you do. In this program you learn how to trust
people. You learn how to do different things, make meaningful
with your life, turn around, do things that are right.

Going down to jail—that don’t rehabilitate you. You have got to
rehabilitate yourself. If you don’'t want to rehabilitate yourself, 1
don’t care how many times they lock you up, you ain’t going to be
rehabilitated. You are just going to keep coming back. It is not how
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many times they lock you up. The point is that you have got to
make up your mind that you want to change—you want to be
rehabilitated. If you make up your mind you want to do that, you
can do it with the help of this program. You need a start.

Mr. WirLiams. I think we have found the appropriate words now
for the inscription over every prison door. Jeff just gave them to us.

Mr. Corrapa. Did incarceration give you the opportunity of
showing others that they could trust you as much as the restitution
program gave you that opportunity?

JEFF. No, sir. Incarceration doesn’t do anything for you but make
yvou worse than you are when you come out.

Mr. CorraDA. You were saying before people put labels on you
when you get in trouble. That means they don’t trust you because
you were involved in a problem.

JEFF. Yes.

Mr. CorraDA. Going to a restitution program does that allow you
to show that you can be trusted?

JEFF. Yes, sir, because they give you freedom. They let you do—
they give you a certain amount of things to do and they trust upon
you to do them. They can’t do them for you. You have to do all this
gourself. You have got to make up your mind that you are going to

o it.

Mr. Corrapa. So it would allow others to have their faith re-
stored in you and would allow you to have trust in others.

JEFF. Yes, sir.

Mr. CorrapA. Becky?

BEecky. Jeff said it all.

Mr. CorrapA. You would agree with what Jeff has said?

BECKY. Yes.

Mr. CorrAapa. How about you, Charles?

CHARLES. He pretty much said it.

Mr. CorraDA. All right. I want to express again our appreciation
for your coming here today and sharing with the members of the
subcommittee your experience about this program, and the infor-
mation about it. We are very appreciative of that, and I personally
and I am sure that I am joined by the other members of the
subcommittee, would wish you the best of luck in the future life.

JONATHAN. Thank you.

Becky. Thank you.

CHARLES. Thank you.

JEFF. Thank you.

Mr. Corrapa. The committee will now adjourn.

[Whereupon, at 1:07 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

[Material submitted for inclusion in the record follows:]
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CATEGORICAL AWARCS FOR CJJOP RELATING TO RESTITUTIUN PROGRAMS PAGE 1

NGN-BLOCK AWARLCS FILE, FY 69 — 81 02/24/81L
STATE: ARKANSAS
GRANT NO. AHARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
T9DFAX0033 $181,037 02/2371S 03/01/7s 04/30/81
FUND ING HISTORY PROJECT MONITGR STATUS
c 79 OF $181,4152 SCHHWARTZy KATHY ACTIVE
D 79 ©DOF $115
GRANTEE ANAME AND ADDRESS PROJECT GIRECTOK
COMPREHENSIVE JUVENILE SERVICES, INC KAREN RIGGS

WESTERN ARKANSAS JUV RESTITUTION PGM
2120 wALCRON ROAD ~ SUITE 106-A
FORT SMITH, AR 72903

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROGRAM

REPORT PRCDUCED? N COST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPRASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUANT TO THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INITIATIVE,
"RESTITUTION BY JUVENILE CFFENDERS: ALTERNATIVE TU INCARCERATION®. TH1S PROJECT
WILL SUPPGRT THE COMPREHENSIVE JUVENILE SERVICES, INC. IN AN EFFCRT TC PRCVIDE
AN ALTERNATIVE TC INCARCERAT ION AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY ON THE PART OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FOR THEIR DELINJUENT BEHAVIOR.
THIS PROGRAM hWILL SERVICE 1,000 AUJUDICATED YOUTH IN A 2 YEAR PERIOD THRCUGH
DIRECT MCNETARY PAYMENT AND THROUGH SUPPCRTED CCMMUNITY SERVICE WORK TQ TARGET
YOUTH hHO WILL MAKE RESTITUTICN TG THE VICTIMS CF CRIME. THE PROJECT wILL BE
IMPLEMENTED IN SIX CCULNTIES (N WHICH JUVENILE OFFENDEKS WILL BE PLACED AND
TRAINED IN PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYMENT. THIS PROGRAM wILL BE ADMINISTERED 8Y THE
COMPREHENSIVE JUVENILE SERVICESy INC A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION DESIGNED TC
SERVE YOUTH IN THE SLX COULNTY KWESTERN ARKANSAS REGICGh.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $181,037 1
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CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR OJJDP RELATING TO RESTITUTIUN PROGRAMS PAGE 2

NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 — 81 02/24/81
STATE: CALIFCRNIA

GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT = AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE

78JSAX0100 $859,161 09/30/78 10/16/78 04/15/81

FUND ING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS

o 18 JS $859,181 DODGE, DOUGLAS ACTIVE

GRANTEE NAME AND. ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTOR

COUNTY OF VENTURA, CALIFORNIA CALVIN REMINGTGN

CORRECTIONS SERVICE AGENCY
VENTURA, CA $3009

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROJECT

REPGRT PROCUCED? N COST CENTER: C(JJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUHHARY

THE GCAL GF ThIS PROJECT IS TO INCREASE THE JUVENILE OFFENDER'S SENSE OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCCUNTABILITY FOR DELINQUENT BEHAVIUR, AND AT THE SAME
TINE, PROVICE AN AVENUE FUR REASONABLE REDRESS OR SATISFACTIGN WITH REGARD TC
LOSS SUFFERED BY VICTINS CF JUVENILE OFFENDERS. THIS WILL BE ACCOMPLISHEU BY
INCREASING THE MEANS BY WHICH RESTITUTION [S PRGVIDED BY JUVENILES ADJUDICAVED
CF DELINQUENT ACTS. FOR THE PURPCSE OF THIS PRCJECT, KESTITUTIUN IS DEFINED AS
EITHER MONETARY PAYMENT TC THE VICTIM OR DIRECT SERVICES TU THE CCMMUNITY.
RESULTS SOUGHT FCR THIS PROJECT INCLUDE GREATER COMMUNLTY CONFIOENCE IN THE
JUVENILE JUSTICE PROCESS AND INCREASED EFFECTIVENESS OF THE JUVENILE JUSTICE
SYSTEM AS IT RELATES TO THE VICTIMS OF JUVENILE CRIMES. OTHER RESULTS EXPECTED
FOR THIS PROJECT INCLUDE INCREASED KNOWLEDGE ABGUT THE FEAS IBILITY OF
RESTITUTICN FOR JUVENILES IN TERMS OF IMPACT IN COST EFFECTIVENESS AS WELL AS A
REDUCTICN OF RECIDIVISM. IT IS5 ESTIMATED THAT 890 JUVENILE OFFENDERS hILL
PARTICIPATE IN THE PRGGRAM WITHIN A 24-MONTH PERIOD.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $859,181 1
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: CATEGURICAL AHARDS FOR 'QJJOP BELATING TO RESTITUTION PROGRAMS PACE 3

NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02/24/81
STATE: CONNECTICUT
GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT  AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE
79EDAX0016 $445,412  03/01/13 03701779 02/28/81
FUND ING HISTORY PROJECT MONITOR . STATUS
o 79 €D $445,412 NCLFSCN, MARK ACTIVE
GRANTEE NANE AND ACDRESS PROJECT DIRECTGR
THAHES VALLEY COUNCIL FOR COMN ACTION JGE COMO

ONE SYLVANDALE RCAD
JEWETT CITY, CT 06351

TITLE: PRCJECT DETCUR - RESTITUTICN
REPCRT PRODUCED? N COST CENTER: OJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRCJECT SUMMARY

THE GENERAL CBJECTIVES OF THIS PROGRAM ARE TO: REDUCE THE INCARCERATION RATE OF
JUVENILES AGES 14-15 BY OPERATING A JUVENILE RESTITUTICN PRUGRAM. REDUCE THE
RECIDIVISM RATE BY PROVID:iNG A VARIETY OF EDUCATIUNALs VOCATIONALs SOCIAL,
FOLLOW-UP AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES TO ALL ENROLLEES. ENHANCE THE PUBLIC®S SENSE
OF JUSTICE AND AWARENESS OF THE JUVENILE JUSTICE SYSTEM. THE PROJECT hILL HAVE
TWO BASE GCENTER LOCATICNS. ONE SITE WILL BE IN GROVON FROM WHICH PRUGRAM
SERVICES WiILL BE. PROVIDED TO JUVENILE OFFENDERS wHO RESIDE IM THE FOUR TOWN
AREA OF GRGTCNy NEW LONDCNy WATERFURD AND LEDYAROD. THE GTHER CENTER WILL BE IN
NCRWICH ANL WILL SERVICE THE TOWNS COF NORWICHs MONTVILLEs, SPRAGUE AND PRESTON.
EACH CENTER WILL BE CAPABLE OF HANDLING 30 CLIENTS. AT 15 PROJECTED THAT FOR A
ONE YEAR PERIOD OF OPERATION 168 YOUTH WILL PARTICIPATE.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $445,412 1
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' CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR CJJDP RELATING TO RESTITUTION PROGRAMS PAGE 4

NGN-BLOCK  AWARDS FILE, FY 69 ~ 81 02/24/81
STATE:. DELAWARE

"GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT - AWARD CATE BEGIN DATE = END GATE

T8EDAX0160 $832,596  09/30/78 10/01/78 04731781

FUND ING HISTORY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS

0 78 ED $8324596 SMITH, FRANK O. ACTIVE

GRANTEE NAME AND ADORESS PROJECT GIRECTOR

FARILY COURT CF DELAWARE EMMETT M PARTIN

P00 BOX 2359
WILMINGTCN, DE 19899

TITLE: RESTITUTION BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS PROJECT
REPORT PROCUCED? N COST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS FUNDED PURSUANT TO THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INLTIATIVE, RESTITUTION
BY JUVENILE GFFENDERS: AN ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATICN. THIS PROJECT WILL
SUPPGRT THE- FAMILY COURT OF DELAWARE IN AM EFFORT TO PHOVIUE AN ALTERNATIVE TO
INCARCERATION AND YO INCREASE THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCFRUNTABILITY ON
THE PART OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FOR THEIR DELINQUENT BEHAYIGK. THIS PRLGRAM WILL
SERVE 2+448 ACJUDICATED YGUTH IN A TwO YEAR PERIOD THRUUGH PROVID ING
RESTITUTION THROUGH COMMUNITY SERVICE, TO THE VICIIMS AMD COURT ORDER PAYMENTS
TO THE VICTIMS SUBSIDIZED FORM GRANT FUNDS. THIS PROGRAM WILL BE ADMINISTERED
BY THE FAMILY CGURT OF DELAWARE.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $832,596 i



52

CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR 0JJOP RELATING TO RESTITUTION PROGRAMS PAGE 5
" NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02724781

STATE: DISTRICT CF CCLUMBEIA

GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT AWARD. DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
- 18J5AX0098 T . $613,660 09/30/78 10/01/78 04/30/81

FUNDING HISTCRY . PRCJECT MONITOR STATUS

o] 78 JS $613,660 SMITH, FRANK O. ACTIVE

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR

DIST OF CGLUMEIA SUPERICR COURT ALAN M SCHUMAN

DIVISION OF SCOCIAL SERVICES
613 G STREET, NORTHWEST
RASHINGTON, DC 20004

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION:ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATION, PROBATN
REPGRY PRCDUCED? N CCST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPRASIS

PRCJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUANT T0 THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INITIATIVE,
PRESTITUTION BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS; ALTERNATIVE TU INCARCEKATION". THIS PROJECT
WILL SUPPORT THE CISTRICT OF CCLUNEBIA SUPRIGR COURT IN AN EFFCRT TO PRGVICE AN
ALTERNAT IVE TU INCARCERATION ANO PROBATION AND TU INCREASE THE SENSE CF
RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCCUNTABILITY ON THE PART GF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FOR THEIR
DELINQUENT BEFAVIOR. THIS PROGRAM WILL SERVE 360 ADJUCICATED YUUTHS IN A TWC
YEAR PERICD. PARTICIPANTS IN THE PROGRAM MAY BE URDEREL TO PROVIDE DIRECT MONEY
PAYMENTS TGO THE VICTIMS FROM EMPLOYMENT SUBSIDIZED FHRGM GRANT FUNDS,s A
PRESCRIBEC COMMUNITY SERVICE FCR A DEFINED PERIDD OF T1ME, OR DIRECT SERVICES
TO THE VICTIMS. THIS PRGGRAM WILL BE AUMINISTERED BY ThE DIVISION OF SGCIAL
SERVECES UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE DISTRICT OF CULUMBIA SUPERIOR COURT.

TGTAL FOR STATE: $613,660 1
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NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02/24/81

STATE: FLORICA
. GRANT ND. AHARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE

T9EDAX00L0 $348,751 12728778 01/01/79 12/31/81

FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS

a % ED $348,751 SMITH, FRANK 0. ACTIVE

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTYOR

BROWARD COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISGRS BARRY WITHERS

201 SCUTHEAST SIXTH STREET .
FORT LAUDEDALE, FL 33301

TITLE: BRORARD COUNTY JUVENILE RESTITUTICN PRCJECT
REPCRT PRODUCED? N COST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRCJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUANT TO THE SPECLIAL EMPHASIS INITIATIVE
RESTITUTION -BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS: ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATION". THIS PRCJECT
WILL SUPPORT THE BROWARD COUNTY JUVENILE COURT IN AN EFFORT. TG PROVIDE AN
ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATIUN AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE OF KESPONSIBILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY ON THE PART OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FOR THEIR DELINQUENT BEHAVIOR.
THIS PROGRAM wILL SERVE 600 ADJUDICATED YOUTH IN A 2 YEAR PERIOD THRCUGH DIRECT
MONETARY PAYMENT THROWUGH SUPPORTED COMMUNITY SERVICE WORK TO TARGET YOUTH WHO
KILL MAKE RESTITUTION TO THE VICTIMS CF CRIME. THE PRCGJECT WILL BE IMPLEMENTEC
BY A CGUNTY-WILE RESTITUTION PRUCESS IN WHICH JUVENILE CFFENDERS WILL BE PLACED
AND TRAINED IN-PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYMENT. THIS PROGRAM WiLL BE ADMINISTERED BY
THE BROWARGC COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $348,751 1




CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR GJJDP RELATING TO RESTITUTIGN PROGRAMS PACGE 7

NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 ~ 81 02724781
STATE:  GEORGIA

GRANT NO. AWARD AMOUNT  AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE

79JSAXC0L1 $216,335  02/26/19 03/01/79 02/28/81

FUNDING HISTGRY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS

0 79 JsS $216,335 SKITH, FRANK O. ACTiVE

GRANTEE NAME/ AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR

CLAYTON COUNTY JUVENILE COURT TO BE NAMED

CLAYTCN CCUNTY COURTHQUSE
JONESBORO, GA 30236

TITLE: CLAYTON CCUNTY: JUVENILE JUSTICE RESTITUTICN FPRCGRAM
‘REPORT PRCCUCED? N COST CENTER: CJJIDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUANT TO THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INITIATIVE,
#RESTITUTION BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS: ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATIUN". THIS PROJECTY
WILL SUPPGRT THE CLAYTCN COUNTY JUVENILE COURT IN AN EFFUKT YO PROVIDE AN
ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATION AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE CF RESPUNSIBILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY ON THE PART OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FUR ThEIR DELINQUENT BEHAVIOR.
THIS PROGRAM WILL SERVICE 400 ADJUGICATED YOUTH IN A Twh( YEAR PERICO THROUGH
CIRECT MONETARY PAYMENT THROUGH SUPPORTED COMMUNITY SERVICE WORK TO TARGET
YOUTH WHO WILL MAKE RESTITUTICN TO THE VICTIMS COF CRIME. THE PROJECT WILL BE
IFPLEMENTED BY A COUNTY-WICE RESTITUTION PROCESS IN hHICH JUVENILE OFFENDERS
Will BE PLACED AND TRAINED IN PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYMENT. THIS PROGRAM wILL BE
ADMINISTERED EY THE CLAYTCN CCUNTY JUVENILE COURT.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $216,335 1
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CATEGCRICAL AWARCS FOR CJJ0P RELATING TO RESTITUTION PROGRAMS PACE 8

NON=BLOCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 - 81 0272478}
STATE: IDAHG -
GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT AKARD DAYE BEGIN DATE END DATE
T9JSAX0012 $264,848 02726719 03/01/19 02/28/81
FUNDING HISTORY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS
o] 79 JdsS $264,848 DODGEs DGUGLAS ACTIVE
GRANTEE NAME AND ACDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR .
IDAHO FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT WARREN H GILMOKE

ACA COUNTY DISTRICT COURT
BOISE, 10 83702

TITLE: JUVERILE WCRK RESTITUTICN IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
REPCRT PROCUCED? N COST CENTER: 0QJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROGJECT SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUANT TO THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INLTIATIVE,
"RESYITUTION BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS: AN ALTERNATIVE TC INCARCERATION". THE
PROJECT kILL SUPPCRT IDAHC'S FOURTH JUCICIAL DISIRICT IN AN EFFORT TO PROVIDE
AN ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATION AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE UF RESPONSIBILITY ANC
ACCOUNTABILITY ON THE PART OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS FUR THEIR DELINQUENT BEHAVIOR.
THIS PROGRAM WILL SERVE 1,200 YOUTHFUL OFFENDERS DURING THE 24 MUNTHS CF THIS
GRANT THROUGH PRUVIDING DISTRICT-WIDE COURTORDERED RESTITUTION. YOUTHS HAY BE
ORDERED TO PAY THE COST OF DESTRUCTIGN, PRGVIDE DIRELT StRVICE TO THE VICTIM OR
PERFCRM A CERTAIN NUMBER OF HOURS OF COMMUNITY SERVICE. THE FOURTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT CONSISTS OF ADA, VALLEY, ELMCRE ANU BOISE CGUNTiES. THE CENTRAL OFFICE
WILL BE LOCATED IN THE ADA COUNTY COURY HOUSE, AND FRGK THIS OFFICE ALL ASPECTS
IN THE DEVELCFMENT AND ADMINISTRATICN WILL BE COORDINAIED.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $264+848 1
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CATEGORICAL AwARDS FOR (JJDP RELATING TO RESTITUTION PRCGRAMS PACGE 9

NON-BLECK AWARLS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02/24/81
U STATE:  ILLINCIS

GRAHT NOe AWARD AMCUNT AWARD CATE BEGIN DATE END DATE

79EDAX0014 $923,316 024097719 03/701/79 02/28/81

FUNDiNG HEISTCRY PRGJECT MONITOR STATUS

o 79 ED $923,316 WCLFSCN, MARK ACTIVE

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT GIRECTOR

CHICAGO CEPARTMENT OF HUMAN -SERVIGES GLORIA TURKES

£40 NORTH LA SALLE
CHICAGO, IL 60610

Tl?LE; RESTITUTIGN PROGRAM FOR JUVENILE OFFENDERS

REPCRT PROCULCED? N COSY CENTER: (€JJDP-SPECIAL EMFFRASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THIS RESTITUTION PROJECT FOR JUVENILE CFFENDERS WILL BE ADMINISTERED BY ThE
CITY OF CHICAGUy, DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES. THE PRINCIPLE GOAL UF THIS
PROJECT IS TO PROVIDE AN ALTERNATIVE TC INCARCERATIUN FCR 200 YUUTH EACH YEAR
BY PLACING THEM ON RESTITUTION. THROUGH THE USE OF UJJDP FUNDS AND CETA FUNGS
YOUTH wWILL B& PLACED IN SUPPORTED EMPLCYMENT. THEY WILL THEN BE REQUIKED VO
REIMEURSE THE VICTIMS OF THEIR CRIMES FOR TH:t REASOUNABLE VALVE OF THE LOSS
SUFFERED. WHERE THERE IS NG GUY OF POCKET LCSS CR PROPERTY HAS BEEN RETURNED
THE ACJUDICATEDC DELINQUENT OFFENDER WILL BE REQUIRED TC PERFLARM A CGMMUNITY
SERVICE.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $923,316 1
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CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR GJJDP RELATING TO RESTITUTIUN PRCGRAMS PACGE 10

S NCN~BLOCK ANARLS FILE, FY 69 - B1 02/24/81
: STATE: KENTUCKY
‘ GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT  AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE
78EDAXCL1S $411,655  09/26/18 11/01/78 10/30/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PRCJECT MCNITOR STATUS
o 78 ED $411,655 SMITH, FRANK 0. ACTIVE
‘ GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTUR
. JEFFERSON COUNTY FISCAL COURT SANDY WILSON
e " DEPARTMENT. CF HUMAN SERVICES

835 WEST JEFFERSON STREET
LOUISVILLE, KY 40202

TITLE: JEFFERSCN COUNTY RESTITUTION PROJECT
'REPORT PROCUCED? N COST CENTER: OJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASLS

@ PROJECT SUMNARY
THE PURPOSE CF THE PROJECT IS TG COMPENSATE VICTINS OF JUVENILE CRIME BY
REQUIRING CASH PAYMENT OR VOLUNTEER WORK BY THE UFFENDER N LIEU OF
INCARCERATICR. THE PRCJECT EXPECTS THAT 750 YOUTHS PEk YEAK hILL PARTICIPATE IN
THE PROJECT AND THE PRCGRAN IS AVAILABLE TO POST-AUJUDICATEUL YOUTH BETWEEN AGES
14~18 CHARGED WITH PROPERTY OFFENSES. EMPLUYMENT/SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES WILL BE
AVAILABLE THRGUGH CETAs THE CCMMUNITY ACTION AGENGYs, METRUPULITAN PARKS AND
RECREATION, JEFFERSON COUNTY WORKS DEPARTMENT AND METRG UNITED WAY VOLUNTARY
ACTECN CENTER.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $411,655 1
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NCN-BLOCK AWARLS FILE, FY 69 — 81 02/24/ €1
STATE: LCUISIANA
GRANT NO. AWARD  AMCUNT  ANWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE
78EDAX0159 $4954147 €S/30/178 12701778 09/ 15/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
e 78 ED $510, 046 SCHHARTZ y KATHY ACTIVE
D 78 ED $10,899
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR
ORLEANS PARISH JUVENILE CCURT ADEL LUWE

916 LAFAYETTE STREET
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70113

TITLE: ORLEANS PARISH JUVENILE COURT RESTITUTION PROGRAM

REPORT. PRODUCED? N COST CENTER: O0JJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRCJECT - SUMMARY

THIS PROJECT hILL SUPPORT THE CRLEANS PARISH JUVENILE COURT IN AN EFFORT TO
PROVIDE AN ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATION AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE OF
RESPONSIBILITY ANC ACCOUNTABILITY CN THE PART OF JUVENILE UFFENDERS FUR THEIR
DELINQUENT BEHAVIGOR. THE MAJGR GOALS FCR THIS GRANT wiLL B8E: TG PROVIDE A
COMPREHENSIVE PROGRAM 0OF RESTITUTION ALTERNATIVES FOR 280 ADJUDICATED
OELINQUENT CHILDREN QVER A 24 MONTH PERIOD: TO CECREASE THE NUMBER OF
CONMITMENTS TC THE LOUISIANA STATE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIUNS BY 15% OVER A 12
MUNTH PERIQD: TG PROVIDE FOR THE SCCIAL, VOCATICNAL REAhABILITATION TRAINING AND
EDUCATIUON OF ACJUDICATED DELINCUENT CHILDREN THROUGH WCRK EXPERIENCE; 70
PROVIDE RESTITUTICN COMPENSATICN TC 140 VICTIMS OF JUVENILE CRIME ANNUALLY IN
NEW ORLEANS; AND TO PROVIDE THE PUBLIC WITH INFORMATION UN THE PROGRAM AIKED AT
INCREASING PUBLIC AWARENESS OF AND CONFIDENCE IN THE JUVENILE JUSTICE SYSIEMS.
THIS GRANT IS MADE UNDER THE SPECIAL ENPHASIS PRUGRAM INITIATIVE; RESTITUTICN
BY JUVENILE CFFENDERS: AN ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATILN".

TOTAL FOR STATE: $457; 147 1
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CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR CJJDP RELATING YO RESTITUTION PRGGRAMS PAGE 12

NON~BLOCK AWARLCS FILEe FY 69 -~ 81 02724781

STATE: MAINE

GRANT NO. AWARD AMOUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
- 78EDAXCL 68 $299s412 09/30/178 10/01/78 08/31/80

FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS

1} 8 ED $299,412 SMITH, FRANK O. ENC-DATE PASSED
GRANTEE NANE- AND ADDRESS PROJECT OIRECTOR

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND DONNA GILBEAU

193 MIDDLE STREET
PORTLANO, ME C4101

TITLE: RESTITUTICN ALTERNATIVE

REPORT PRCDUCEC? N COST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRUOJECT SUMMARY

COGNIZANT GF THE NEED FOR ALTERNATIVE COMMUNITY MODELS FOR ThE JUVENILE
QFFENDER, THE PORTLAND PROGRAM FOR ADOLESCENT RESPUNSIBILITY (TU BE KNOWN AS
THE CUMBERLAND CCUNTY JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROJECT) KHAS OEVELUPED A COUNTY WIDE
RESTITUTIGN PROJECT BASED ON THIS RECONCILIATIVE MUDEL CF CURRECTIUNS. THE
PRCJECT SERVES TWO CLIENT SYSTEMS IN THAT 80TH OFFENDERS AND VICTIMS ARE

CONS IDERED CLIENTS. THE MAJOR GCALS OF THIS PROJECT ARE: INCREASE THE
DISPOSITIONAL ALYERNATIVES AVAILABLE TO THE COURT; INCKEASE COMMUNITY
INVOLVEMENT IN AND CONFIDENCE IN THE JUVENILE JUSTIUE SYSTEM; AND INCREASE
OFFENDER SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY BY HOLDING THE YGUTH ACCOUNTABLE FOK HIS/HER
BEHAVIOR THRCUGH PAYMENT GF RESTITUTICN. THE PRCJECT WILL ACCOMPL ISH THESE
GOALS BY ADOPTING A STANCE AS MEDIATORS AND BROKERS FOR BOTH CLIENT SYSTEMS.
RUOLE GF BROKER MAINTAINS THE UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIGN THAT BOTH CLIcNTS MAY HAVE
NEED OF ADDITIONAL RESOURCES SUCH AS SGCIAL SERVICES, LEGAL ASSISTANCE,
COUNSELING, 2L7ERNATE LIVING ARRANGEMENTS, CRIME PREVENTION EDUCATION, JOB
DEVELOPMENT. ACTING AS BRUKERSs STAFF WILL INTERVENE wITH UTHER SERVICE
PROVIDERS TO SEE THAT CLIENTS RECEIVE THE NEEDED AlD.

RART NO. AWARD ARCUNT AWARD CATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
BOHUAXOOIZ $286,791 09/30/80 09/01/80 068/31/81
' FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
1} 80 Js $284,894 WOLFSONs MARK ACTIVE
1} 80 PG $1,857
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR
MAINE DISTRICT COURT THEGOURE T TROIT, JR

THE RESTITUTICN ALTERNATIVE
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NON-BLOCK AWARCS FILE, FY 69 - 8l 02/24/81

BUTLER STREET
SPRINGVALEy ME 04083

TITLE: THE RESTITUTION ALTERNATIVE
REPCRT PRODUCED? N COST CENTER: (CJJOP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMHARY

THIS GRANY WILL CCNTINUE TU PROVIDE SERVICES TO OFFENDERS AND VICTIMS IN YORK,
CUMBERLAND AND ANDROSCOGGIN CCUNTIES IN TRE STATE OF MAINE. THESE SITES WILL
SERVE AT A MINIMUM 375 YOUTH THROUGH CGMMUNITY SERVICE AND MCNETARY RESTITUTIGA
ORDERS. VICTIMS GF YOUTH CRIME WILL BE REIMBURSED FOR THEIR LOSSES SUFFERED AS
A RESULT OF THE JUVENILE OFFENDERS CRIME.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $586,203 2
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CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR CJJOP RELATING TOD RESTITUTIUN PROGRAMS PAGE 14

NEN-BLOCK AWARCS FILEs FY 69 ~ 81 02/24/81
STATE: MARYLAND
GRANT NG. AWARD AMOUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
77J5€30002 $5,000 08/18/717 08716777 12/715/17 4
FUND ING HISTCRY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS
a 77 Js $5,000 DONAHUE, TERRY FEDERAL STORAGE
GRANTEE ‘NANE AND ADDRESS PROJECT OUIRECTOR
- FARYLAND SPA JOHN DUCHEZ
EXECUTIVE PLAZA CNE, SUITE 302 .

COCKEYSVILLE, MD 21030

TITLE: MARYLAND JUVENILE JUSTICE TRAINING CONFERENCE

REPORT PRODUCED?2 N CCST CENTER: CJJDP-FORMULA GRANT & TA

PROJECT SUMMARY

THE MARYLAND STATE PLANNING AGENCY (THE GRANTEE) WILL SPONSOR A THREE DAY
TRAINING CONFERENCE FUR PUBLIC AGENCIES SERVING THE JUVENILE JUSTICE SYSTEN.
THE TCPICS FCR THE CONFERENCE WILL INCLUDE BOTH MANAGEMENT AND PROGRAMMING
ISSUES RELATIVE TO EFFECTIVE JUVENILE JUSTICE SEKRVICES DELIVERY (DIVERSICA,
CASE MANAGEMENT, CONTRACTING, AND RESTITUTION)}. INDIVIDUAL KORKSHUOPS &ILL BE
CONCUCTED BY A SERIES OF CONSULTANTS, hHICH ARE CUNSIDERED TC BE EXPERTS IN
THEIR RESPECTIVE AREAS. APPROXIMATELY 125 PUBLIC AGENCY PERSCNNEL {(PROSECUTORS,
PUBLIC DEFENDERSy JUVENILE COURT JUDGESy JUVENILE SERVICES ACTMINISTRATION) ARE
EXPECTED TC ATTEND THE CONFERENCE.

GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
78EDAX0158 $8634196 €9/30/178 10/01/778 10/31/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
o] 78 EC $1,012,357 SMITH, FRANK Q. ACTIVE
D 78 ED $149,+161

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR
PRINCE GEOQORGEYS COUNTY GOVERNMENT JOHN WHRIGHTSON

4321 HARTWICK ROAD
CCLLEGE PARK, MD 20740

TITLE: COMMUNITY PRCJECT FCR RESTITUTION BY JUYENILE OFFENDERS

REPORT PROCUCED? N COST CENTER: UJJDP—SPECIAL‘EHPHASIS

U 79-489 O--81——5
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NCN-BLOCK AWARLS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02/24/81

PRGJECT SUFMARY

THIS PROJECT IS BEING FUNDED PURSUAANT TO THE SPECIAL EMPHASIS INITIATIVE,
®RESTITUTION BY JUVENILE OFFENDERS: AN ALTERNATIVE TG INCARLERATIUN." THIS
PRGJECT wILL SUPPORT THC CFFICE OF THE YOUTH CCGCRDINATCGHR IN AN EFFURT TG
PROVIDE AN ALTERNATIVE TO INCARCERATIGN AND TU INMKREASE THE SENSE. OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCGUNTABILITY (h THE PART OF JUVENILE UFFENDERS FOk THEIR
DELINQUENT BERAVIOR. THE PROGRAM wILL SERVE. 600 REFERKEU JUVENILE GFFENDERS
DURING THE 24 MOGNTHS GF THIS GRANT. PARTICIPANTS MAY BE UKLEKED BY THE COURTS
TO PAY THE CCST OF RESTITUTION FRCM CCMMUNITY SERVICE EMPLOYMENT SUBSIECIZED
BITH GRANT FULMNDS, PRGVIDE A DIRECT SERVICE TO THE VICTIM OR THE COMMUNITY. THE
PROGRAM WILL BE ADMINISTEREDBY THE OFFICE OF THE YOUTH CUURDINATUR UNGER THE
AUSPICES GF THE PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY GOVERNMENT. Ihl SUBCUNTRACTOKRSy THE 4-H
CLUB AND THE EARLY LEARNIANGy INCay WILL PROVIDE LEADERSHIP TRAINING, VOCATIUNAL
TRAINING AND SUPERVISION OF REFERRED JUVENILES.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $868,196 2
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CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR GJJOP RELATING TO RESTITUTIGN PRCGRAMS PAGE 16
NON-BLGCK AWARDS FILEs FY 69 - 81 02/24/81

STATE: MASSACHUSETTS

'GRANT NO. - AHARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
78DFAX0220 $1714842 09/30/78 10/01/78 11/30/80

FUNDING HISTCRY PRCJECT MCNITOR STATUS

€ 78 DF $171,842 SMITH, FRANK O. END-DATE PASSED
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRGJECT CIRECTUKR

ASSCCIAT ICN FCR SUPPCRT OF HUMAN SRV INC ALICE BAKER
FCGRTYY-TWC ARNCLD STREET
WESTFIELD, MA 01085

TITLE: YOUTH RESTITUTION PRGGRAM
REPGRT PRCDUCED? N COST CENTER: LJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THE GOAL C€F THE PROJECT IS TO REDUCE THE INCARCERATIUN CF ADJUDICATED YOQUTH BY
USING RESTITUTION AS AN ALTERNATIVE. TARGET YOUTH WlilL BE THOSE INVULVED IN
CFFENSES SUCH AS CAMAGE TC HECNES, CAR VANDALISM, POACHINGy MGVING VERICLE
VIGLATIONS, TEEFT, OR CThHER OFFENSES WHICH MIGHT NURMALLY LtAD TO
INCARCERATION. THE PRIME OBJECTIVES ARE TO REDUCE BY HALF THE NUMBER GF YOUTH
INCARCERATED IN 1976 AND DOUBLE THE RATE UF RESTITUTIGNM FROM 48 IN 1976 8Y THE
END DOF THE FIRST FUNDED YEAR. SINCE JANUARY 1, 1978 THE APPLICANT HAS ASSISTED
IN COMMUNITY SERVICE RESYITUTICN BY PLACING 16 YULUTH. THIS IS THE BASIS CFf
PROPOSED ACTIVITIES OF THIS PRCGRAM. THE CRUCIAL GAP IS IN FGRMALIZED LINKAGE
BETHEEN THE COURTS AND A SPECIFIC COMMUNITY-BASED AGENCY wHICH WUULD ALLGW A
SMOOTH FLCW FRCM ADJUCICATION THROUGH RESTITUTIUN. PROBLEMS OF IMPLEMENTATIGON
HOULD BE SO SLIGHT THAT IT IS EXPECYED THAYT THE SYSTEM wiLULOD BE FREE-STANLING
WITHIN TWO YEARS. THIS PROGRAM WILL PROVIDE FOR THE ASHS TG ACT AS THE
COMMUNITY-BASED AGENCY AND BE THE CONOUIT FOR THE ASSIGNMENT UF ACJUDICATED
YOUTH TO OVER FCRTY AGENCIES wITH WHOM THE APPLICANT HAS A WORKING RELATICNSHIP.

GRANT NO. AHARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
TBEDAXO167 $370,525 09/30/78 10/01/718 04/30/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITGR STATUS
[+ 78 ED $370,925 RGLFSCNs MARK ACTIVE
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT CIRECTOR

CITY OF LYNN, MASSACHUSETTS RICHARD BEDINE

LYNN YOUTH SERVICE BUREAU
ONE MARKET STREET
LYNN: MA C1SC1



64 |

- CATEGORICAL AWARDS FOR OJJDP RELATING TD RESTITUTION PROGRAMS PAGE 17
NCN-BLCCK AWARDS FILE, FY 69 - 81 02/24/81

ifTLEé INDIVIOUALIZED RESTITUTICK PRCGRAM FOR JUVENILE OFFENDERS
REPORT PRCOUCED? N COST CENTER:  CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPRASIS

PROI LT SUMMARY
THE  PROJECT WILL SUPPORT VHE LYNN YOUTH RESGURCE BUREAU IN AN EFFORT TC:
PROVIDE AN ALTERNATIVE VO INCARCERATION AND TO INCREASE THE SENSE OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY CR THE PART OF JUVENILE GFFENDERS FOR THEIR
. DELINQUENT BEYAVIOR; PROVIDE SOME REDRESS OF SATISFACTIUN wiTH REGARD TC THE
REASONABLE VALUE OF THE DAMAGE GR LOSS SUFFERED BY VICTIMS OF JUVENILE
OFFENDERS; CREATE A GREATER COMNUNITY CONFIDENCE IH THE JUVENILE JUSTICE
PROCESS; AND ACHIEVE A RECUCTION IN RECIDIVISM OF PARTICIPATING JUVENILES IN
LYNNe Tri ~XOGRAM PLANS TQ SERVE SEVENTY-FIVE YCUTH IN YEAR UNE AND GNE HUNDRED
YOUTH i° ¥EZP TWO BY PRODUCING INDIVIDUALIZED RESTATUTION PLANS WHICH ARE
EQUITABI € 1 THE OFFENSES AND PRGVIDE COUNSELING GPTIONS AND JOB SKILLS. THE
CASES SEL«U1ED FOR RESTITUTION WILL REPRESENT VARIOUS CATEGORIES OF
MISOEMEANORS AND/OR FELCNY OFFENSES AGAINST PERSONS.

GRANT NO. AHARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
TB8EDAXOLI70 $309, 866 09/30/718 10/01/78 09/30/81
FUNB ING HISTCRY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS
a 78 ED $354,575 WCLFSCNy MARK - ACTIVE
] 78 ED $449706

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRGJECT DIKECTOR
CITY OF NEW BECFORD DONALD GOMEZ

JUVENILE COURT
KUNICIPAL BUILLCING
NEW BEOFCRDs MA

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION

REPORT PROEUCED? N COST CENTER: (CJJOP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THE NEW BECFCRO RESTITUTION PROJECT WILL BE DESIGNED TOQ PROVIDE THE NEW BEDFORD
JUVENILE COURT AITH SIXTY RESTITUTIEN ALTERNATIVE SLGOTS AT ANY ONE TIME. THIS
WILL BE ACCOMPL ISHED BY TRE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MECHANISM WHEREBY ¥HE
PARTICIPANTS IN RESTITUTION-TYPE QFFENSES WHICH REACH ThE CUURT WILL ENGAGE IN
A MEDIATICN MODEL WHICH WILL IDENTIFY THE NEEDS, ASPIRATIUNSy AND GUALS OF
INCIVIDUAL RESTITUTICN PRCGRAMS. BY PRGVIDING EFFECTIVE RESTITUTION

" ALTERNATIVES THE PROJECT WILL: REDUCE THE NUMBER UF JUVENILES COMMITTED TC DYS;
RECUCE THE RECIDIVISM OF THOSE YOUTHS INVOLVED .IN FHE PRUGRAM BY PROVIDING A
COMPREHENSIVE PROCESS WHICH INCLUDES CCUNSELING, JOB READINESS TRAININGs AND
ACTUAL JCB PLACEMENTSy ACHIEVE VICTIM SATISFACTION. THE PROJECT 1S GESIGNED TQ
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ENCUURAGE-VICTIM PARTICIPATION IN THE PROCESS,  INCREASE THE SENSE OF

RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCCUNTABILITY ON THE PART OF YOUTHFUL DFFENDERSs AND
ESTABLISH COMMUNITY CONFIDENCE IN THE JUVENILE JUSTICE PROCESS. THE PROJECT
WILL CONTAIN A PUBLIC INFORMATION MEDIA COMPONENT WHICH WILL BE DESIGNED 10 THE
WORKINGS GF YHE PRUJECY IN AN EFFORT YO INCREASE COMMUNITY CONFIDENCE IN THE
SUVENILE JUSTICE PROCESS.

GRANT NO. AWARD AMOUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE

TB8JSAX0044 $6604659 01718778 07/16/78 03/28/81
FUND ING HISTCRY PRCJECT MCNITOR STATUS
9 78 JS $510,699 WOLFSGNs MARK ACTIVE
S 80 Js $1504000

CRANTEE NANE AND ADDRESS PROJECT DIRECTOR
DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES EVILYN FRIEOMAN

294 WASHINGTON STREET
BOSTGNy MA 02114

TITLE: MASSACHUSETTS RAILROAC RESTITUTION PROJECT
REPORT PROLUCED? N COST CENTERz 0OJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRCJECT SUMMARY

THE MASSACHUSETTS RAILRCAD RESTITUTION PROJECT WILL BE A JOINTLY FUNDED PROGRAM
UNDER THE OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCYPREVENTICN!S UNSOLICITED
MCDEL PROGRA¥ CATEGORY OF FUNDS ANE ThE DEPARTMENT OF LABORs YOUTH EMPLOYMENT
ACT FUNDS. THE MAJOR GBJECTIVE OF THIS PROGRAM IS TG PRCVIDE FOR THE SOCIAL AND
VOCATICNAL REHABILITATION AND TRAINING OF COMMITYED OR REFEKRED JUVENILE
CFFENDERS- THIS wii.lL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY THE IMPLEMENTATIONOF A STATEWIDE MODEL
VICTIM RESTITUTION PROCESS IN WHICH JUVENILE OFFENUDERS kILL BE PLACED IN
SUPPURTED PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLCYMENT, AND TRAINED 50 THAT THEY CAN SEEK FUTURE
EMPLCYMENT. IN ADDITION, THEY WILL MAKE RESTITUTION TO THEIR VICTIMS. THE
PROGRAM WILL BE ACMINISTERED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES THROUGH ITS
SEVEN REGIONAL OFFICES. A CENTRAL STAFF WILL PRCVIDE GVERALL PGOLICY DIRECTIGN
AND MANAGEMENT FOR THE RESTITUTION PROCESS. EACH DYS REGION WILL HAVE A
RESTITUTICN CCORDINATCR wHO WILL MANAGE THE RESTITUTION PRULESS FOR THEIR
REGION UNDER THE DIRECTION ANC CONTROL OF THE REGIGNAL DIRECTOR. DYS PROJECTS
SERVING 450, 16 TC 17 YEAR OLC COMMITTED CR REFERRED JUVENILE OFFENCERS FOR THE
18 MONTH PERIOD OF THIS GRANT.



66

CATEGQRICAL AWARDS FGR €JJOP RELATING TO RESTIIthUN PROGRAMS PAGE 19

: NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILEs FY 69 -~ 81 02/724/81
»GRANi NO. AWARD AMCUNT AWNARD CATE  BEGIN DATE END DATE

T9JSAX0014 $88,803 03/09/19 03/12/19 06730719

FUND ING HISTORY : PROJECY MONITOR STATUS

a 79 JS $428,607 WOLFSCNy MARK END-DATE PASSED

0 79 Js $341,431

R 79  JS $1¢627

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRGJECT OIRECTOR

OISTRICT CCLRY OF EAST NORFOLK TO BE NAMEC

FIVE HUNDRED CHESTNUT STREET
QUINCY,» KA 02169

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROGRAM
REPCRT PRCCUCED? N CCST CENTER: CJJOP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY )
THIS PROGRAM WILL INCCRPORATE A JUVENILE RESTITUTION PRUGRAM AT THE DISTRICY
COURY OF EAST NORFOLKy GUINCY, MASS. AS AN ALTERNATIVE TU CUMMITMENT FOR ALL
JUVENILE OFFENCERS WHERE DAMAGES R™"JLTING FROM A JULVENILE®*S CFFENSE ARE CF
MEASURABLE MOMETARY VALUE. THE PRG.-.T WILL ALSC OFFER EMPLOYMENT TO ThESE
JUVENILE DFFENCERS BY EXPANDING THE PRESENT EMPLOYMENT PRUJECT KNOkN AS THE
EARN-IT PRCGRAM AT THE DISTRICT COURT CF EAST NORFULK. APPRUXIMATELY 320 YOUTH
PER YEAR WILL BE SERVED.

GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
79JSAXC03C $6455236 C8/724/79 07/01/79 12/7320/81
FUND ING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
0 79 JS $241,431 WCLFSCNy MARK ACTAIVE
S 80 Js $319,015

o 80 JsS $15,210

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTOKR
TRIAL COURT GF MASSACHUSETTS CHRISTINE CEANE

EAST NORFCLK CIVISICA
FIFTY CHESTNUT STREET
QUINCYe MA 02169

TITLE: JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROGRAM

REPORT PROCLCED? N CCSY CENTER: (CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS
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v"PROJECT SUMMARY
. THIS PROGRAM WILL INCORPORATE A JUVENILE RESTITUTION PROGRAM AT THE DISTRICT
" COURY OF EAST MORFOLK, GQUINCYs; MASS. AS AN ALTERNATIVE. . TO CUMMITHENT FGR ALL
.. JUVENILE CFFENDERS WHERE DAMAGES RESULTING FRUM A JUVENILE'> OFFENSE ARE OF
- MEASUKRABLE MONETARY VALUE. THE PRCJECT WILL ALSO UFFER EMPLOYMENT VO THESE
JUVENILE OFFENDEKS BY EXPANDING THE PRESENT EMPLOYNENT PROJECT KNOWN AS THE
EARN-1T PRGGRAM AT THE DISTRICT COURY OF EAST NCRFULK. APPRUXIMATELY 320 YOUTH
PER YEAR WILL BE SERVED.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $25 247,371 6
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NON-BLOCK AWARGS FILE, FY 69 ~ 81 02/24/.81
STATE: MICRIGAN
GRANT- NO. " AWARD AMOUNT  AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE  END DATE
- 7BEDAXOL43 - $538,439 09/30/78 © 10/01/78 11/30/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
g .78 €D $538,439 WOLFSCN, MARK ACTIVE
“GRANTEE KAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTOR
COUNTY OF WAYNE, MICHIGAN WILLIAM hIGGINS

JUVENILE DIVISION, PROBATE COURT
1025 EAST FOREST
DETROIT, MI 48207

TITLE: POSITIVE ACTICN FOR YOUTH

REPORT PROCUCED? N COSY CENTER:  GJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THE COUNTY OF WAYNE, MICHIGAN JUVENILE DIVISION PROBATE COURT KILL BE THE
GRANTEE FCR THIS RESTITUTION PROJECT. TO ACHIEVE ITS GUAL OF REDUCING JUVENILE
CRIMEy THE JUVENILE COURT IN WAYNE CUUNTY WILL IMPLEMENTY A RESTITUTIGN PRCJECT
AFTER ADJUDICATICN. THE PROJECT WILL 8E HOUSED IN THE CUOURT*S CLINIC SERVICES
DIVISICNy ANC THE DIRECTOR OF THIS DIVISION WILL BE THE PRUJECT DIRECTCR. A
RESTITUTION CCORDINATCR AND TwG VICTIM AUVOCATES AND A CLERK WILL AUMINISTER
THE PROJECT AND THEY WILL BE HOUSED IN THE CLINIC SERVICES DIVISION INTAKE
UNIT. THE PRCJECT WILL IMPLEMENT A RESTITUTION PROGKAM WHICH WILL ENABLE
ADJUDICATED JUVENILE OFFENDERS TO MAKE MCUGNETARY RESTITUTIUN Ok ENGAGE IN
SERVICE TO THE VICTIM CR THE COMMUNITY. C.E.T.A. PLACEMENTS WILL BE USED, FCR
ELIGIBLE YOUTH, TC ENABLE THE CFFENDER TC EARN MONEY AND PAY RESTITUTION. WHERE
A YOUTH IS NOT CeEeToAe ELIGIBLE THE YOUTH wWILL BE PLACED IN COMMUNITY SERVICE
OR VICTIM SERVICE. THE WAYNE CCUNTY JUVENILE COURY PROJECTS SERVING 15200
YOUTHS A YEAR FOK THE THREE YEARS CF THIS GRANT.

TOTAL FOR STATE: $538,439 1
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) NON-BLOCK AWARDS FILEy FY 6S - Bl 02/724/81
STATE: MINNESOTA
" GRANT NO. AKARD AMCUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
T8EDAXOLS]1 $443,716 09/30/78 12701778 03/31/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT MCNITOR STATUS
(i} 78 ED $458,690 STHWARTZ, KATHY ACTIVE
3] 78 ED $14,574
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS PRCJECT DIRECTOR
DEPARTMENT OF COURT SERVICES DAVID K STEENSUN

JUVENILE PRCBATION DIVISICN
915 FIFTH STREET SOUTH
MINNEAPOLISy NN 55415

TITLE: RESTITUTION PRCGRAM FOR JUYENILE OFFENDERS
REPORT PROTUCED? N COST CENTER: QJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PROJECT SUMMARY

THE GRANTEE FCR THIS RESTITUTICN PRCGRAM FOR JUVENILE OFFENDERS WILL BE
HENNEP IN COUNTY. THE GRANT WILL BE ADMINISTERED BY THE H:NNEPIN COUNTY,
DEPARTHMENT CF COURT SERVICES, JUVENILE PROBAYION SERVICES. THE PROJECT WILL
IMPLEMENT A. RESTITUTION PROCESS FGR ADJUDICATED DEL INQUENT OFFENDERS WHICH WILL
INCLUDE MUNETARY AND COMMUNITY SERVICE RESTITUTIUN CUMPONENTSe YUUTH WHO ARE
ORGERED TC MAKE MONETARY RESTITUTICN, AND WHO DC NOT HAVE THE MEANS TO MAKE
PAYMENTS, WILL BE PLACED IN EMPLUYMENT SLOTS WHICH ARE SUPPURTED 8Y 0JJDP
FUNDS. THE GRANTEE PRCJECTS SERVING 550 YOUTH PER YEAK GR 1100 YOUTH FGR THE
TWC YEAR GRANT PERIDD.

GRANT NO. ARARD AMOUNT AWARD DATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
T9DFAX0028 $320,263 02/16/779 03/01/79 02/28/81
FUND.ING HISTCRY PROJECT MONITOR STATUS
0 79 OF $3204 263 SCHRARTZy KATHY ACTIVE
GRANTEE NANE AND ADORESS PRCJECT DIHECTOR
FOREST LAKE YOUTH SERVICE BUREAU TOM OSWALD

1068 SOUTH LAKE STREEY
FOREST LAKEe MN 55025

TITLE: KASHINGTGN COUNTY JUVENILE RESTITUTICN ALTERNATIVE
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» REPDRT PRODLCED? N  CGST CENTER: CJJDP-SPECIAL EMPHASIS

PRCJECT SUMMARY

UNCER AGREEMENT WITH THE HASHINGTON COUNTY COURT THIS PROJECT WILL BE
ADMINISTERED BY THE FCOREST LAKE YOUTH SERVICE BUREAU. THIS PROJECT wILL PROVIDE
A RESTITUTION ALTERNATIVE TO 40 PERCENY OF THE YLUTH ADJUDICATED FCR
SHOPLIFTINGy VANDALISMy THEFTs PURSE SNATCHINGs AND OTHER ACTS DEEMED
APPROPRIATE FCR THE PRUGRAM BY THE JUVENILE JUDGE. 1T IS PRUJECIED THAT TFHE USE
OF THE RESTITUTION ALTERNATIVE WILL RESULT IN A 10 PERCENT REDUCTICON IN
INCARCERATIUN. KHEN A PETITICN IS RECEIVED ON AN YOUTHs A RESTITUTIGN
COORDINATOR WILL BE ASSIGNED TO REVIEW THE CASE TO DETERMINE THE VICTIM®S LOSS,
AND NEGOTIATE A RESTITUTIGON AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ThE vICTIM AND THE UFFENDER.
THIS WILL BE PRESENTED TO THE COURT AT TIME OF THE COURT HEARING. IF A YGUTH
EITHER PLEADS GUILTY CR IS FCUND GUILTY, THE COURT HINLS THAT RESTITUTION IS
APPROPRIATEy, ANC THE YUUTH AGREES TO RESTITUTION, THE CUOURT wiLL ADCPY THE
NEGGTIATED CCNTRACT IN ITS CRDER. PROJECT STAFF Wittt THEN REFER THE YCUTH TO
EMPLCYMENT OR COMMUNITY SERVICE SLOTS. THE GRANT PRCJECTS SERVING 470 YQUTH
OVER THE TWO YEARS OF THE GRANT.

GRANT NO. AWARD AMCUNT AWARD CATE BEGIN DATE END DATE
T9EDAXNOLS $2434453 Q2723779 03/0L/79 02/28/81
FUNDING HISTCRY PROJECT FCNITGCR STATUS
¢} 79 EC $2434453 SCHWARTZy KATHY A